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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
 

This report contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are contained principally in the section captioned “Description of Business,” “Risk
Factors,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors which may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements expressed
or implied by the forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the factors described in the section captioned “Risk Factors” in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 filed with the SEC on September 28, 2020. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by
terms such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “would,” and similar
expressions intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements reflect our current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions
and subject to risks and uncertainties. You should read these factors and the other cautionary statements made in this report and in the documents we incorporate by reference
into this report as being applicable to all related forward-looking statements wherever they appear in this report or the documents we incorporate by reference into this report. If
one or more of these factors materialize, or if any underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results, performance or achievements may vary materially from any future
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.

 
Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include, among other things,

statements relating to:
 

 ● our ability to continue as a going concern;
   
 ● our ability to secure sufficient funding and alternative source of funding to support our current and proposed operations, which could be more difficult in light of the

negative impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on investor sentiment and investing ability;
   
 ● our anticipated growth strategies and our ability to manage the expansion of our business operations effectively;
   
 ● our ability to maintain or increase our market share in the competitive markets in which we do business;
   
 ● our ability to grow net revenue and increase our gross profit margin;
   
 ● our ability to keep up with rapidly changing technologies and evolving industry standards, including our ability to achieve technological advances;
   
 ● our dependence on the growth in demand for our products;
   
 ● our ability to compete with larger companies with far greater resources than we have;
   
 ● our continued ability to obtain raw materials and other supplies for our products at competitive prices and on a timely basis, particularly in light of the potential

impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our suppliers and supply chain;
   
 ● our ability to diversify our product offerings and capture new market opportunities;
   
 ● our ability to source our needs for skilled labor, machinery, parts, and raw materials economically;
   
 ● our ability to retain key members of our senior management;
   
 ● our ability to continue to operate safely and effectively during the COVID-19 pandemic; and
   
 ● our dependence on our major customers.
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Also, forward-looking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of the date of this report. You should read this report and the documents that we
reference and file as exhibits to this report completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect. Except as
required by law, we assume no obligation to update any forward-looking statements publicly, or to update the reasons actual results could differ materially from those
anticipated in any forward-looking statements, even if new information becomes available in the future.
 
Use of Certain Defined Terms
 

Except where the context otherwise requires and for the purposes of this report only:
 

 ● the “Company,” “Flux,” “we,” “us,” and “our” refer to the combined business of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Flux Power, Inc., a California corporation (“Flux Power”).

   
 ● “Exchange Act” refers the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;
   
 ● “SEC” refers to the Securities and Exchange Commission; and
   
 ● “Securities Act” refers to the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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 PART I - Financial Information
 

 Item 1. Financial Statements
 

FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 

  

September 30,
2020

(Unaudited)   
June 30,

2020  
       
ASSETS         
         
Current assets:         

Cash  $ 6,150,000  $ 726,000 
Accounts receivable   3,162,000   3,069,000 
Inventories   6,049,000   5,256,000 
Other current assets   488,000   787,000 

Total current assets   15,849,000   9,838,000 
Right of use asset   3,337,000   3,435,000 
Other assets   132,000   174,000 
Property, plant and equipment, net   688,000   528,000 
         
Total assets  $ 20,006,000  $ 13,975,000 
         
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)         
         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable  $ 3,791,000  $ 4,648,000 
Accrued expenses   1,453,000   1,400,000 
Deferred revenue   48,000   4,000 
Customer deposits   920,000   1,563,000 
Due to Factor   -   469,000 
Short-term loans – related party   -   2,057,000 
Line of credit - related party   4,396,000   5,290,000 
Financing lease payable   18,000   28,000 
Office lease payable, current portion   345,000   288,000 
Accrued interest   248,000   50,000 

Total current liabilities   11,219,000   15,797,000 
         
Long term liabilities:         

Paycheck Protection Program loan payable   1,297,000   1,297,000 
Office lease payable, less current portion   3,197,000   3,301,000 

         
Total liabilities   15,713,000   20,395,000 
         
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):         
         
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 500,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding   -   - 
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 11,419,737 and 7,420,487 shares
issued and outstanding at September 30, 2020 and June 30, 2020, respectively   11,000   7,000 
Additional paid-in capital   61,678,000   46,985,000 
Accumulated deficit   (57,396,000)   (53,412,000)
         
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)   4,293,000   (6,420,000)
         
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)  $ 20,006,000  $ 13,975,000 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)
 

  
Three Months Ended

September 30,  
  2020   2019  
Net revenue  $ 4,499,000  $ 1,919,000 
Cost of sales   3,626,000   1,802,000 
         
Gross profit   873,000   117,000 
         
Operating expenses:         

Selling and administrative expenses   2,920,000   2,262,000 
Research and development   1,507,000   1,341,000 
Total operating expenses   4,427,000   3,603,000 

         
Operating loss   (3,554,000)   (3,486,000)

         
Interest expense   (430,000)   (328,000)
         

Net loss  $ (3,984,000)  $ (3,814,000)
         
Net loss per share - basic and diluted  $ (0.42)  $ (0.75)
         
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic and diluted   9,536,441   5,103,342 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FLUX POWER HOLDING, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(unaudited)
 

  Common Stock           

  Shares   
Capital Stock

Amount   
Additional Paid-

in Capital   
Accumulated

Deficit   Total  
Balance at June 30, 2020   7,420,487  $ 7,000  $ 46,985,000  $ (53,412,000)  $ (6,420,000)
                     
Issuance of common stock – private placement transactions,
net   800,000   1,000   3,199,000   -   3,200,000 
Issuance of common stock – debt conversion   100,000   -   400,000   -   400,000 
Issuance of common stock – public offering, net of costs   3,099,250   3,000   10,695,000   -   10,698,000 
Fair value of warrants issued   -   -   174,000   -   174,000 
Stock based compensation   -   -   225,000   -   225,000 
Net loss   -   -   -   (3,984,000)   (3,984,000)
Balance at September 30, 2020   11,419,737  $ 11,000  $  61,678,000  $  (57,396,000)  $  4,293,000 
 
  Common Stock           

  Shares   
Capital Stock

Amount   
Additional Paid-

in Capital   
Accumulated

Deficit   Total  
Balance at June 30, 2019   5,101,580  $ 5,000  $ 35,902,000  $ (39,076,000)  $ (3,169,000)
                     
Issuance of common stock – exercised options   2,894   -   -   -   - 
Stock based compensation   -   -   451,000   -   451,000 
Net loss   -   -   -   (3,814,000)   (3,814,000)
Balance at September 30, 2019   5,104,474  $ 5,000  $  36,353,000  $  (42,890,000)  $  (6,532,000)
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
 

  Three Months Ended September 30,  
  2020   2019  
Cash flows from operating activities:         
Net loss  $ (3,984,000)  $ (3,814,000)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities         
Depreciation   54,000   33,000 
Stock-based compensation   225,000   451,000 
Fair value of warrant issued as debt issuance cost   174,000   - 
Noncash interest expense   29,000   - 
Noncash rent expense   98,000   88,000 
Allowance for inventory reserve   (219,000)   - 
Amortization of prepaid offering costs   547,000   - 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   (93,000)   1,390,000 
Inventories   (574,000)   (311,000)
Other current assets   (206,000)   (132,000)
Accounts payable   (857,000)   309,000 
Accrued expenses   53,000   (103,000)
Due to Factor   (469,000)   382,000 
Accrued interest   198,000   282,000 
Office lease payable   (47,000)   2,000 
Deferred revenue   44,000   - 
Customer deposits   (643,000)   - 

Net cash used in operating activities   (5,670,000)   (1,423,000)
         
Cash flows from investing activities         

Purchases of equipment   (214,000)   (104,000)
Net cash used in investing activities   (214,000)   (104,000)

         
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Proceeds from issuance of common stock in private placement   3,200,000   - 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in public offering, net of offering costs   10,698,000   - 
Borrowings from line of credit - related party debt   -   1,595,000 
Payment of short-term loan – related party   (1,178,000 )   -  
Payment of line of credit – related party   (1,402,000)   - 
Principal payments on financing lease payable   (10,000)   (7,000)

Net cash provided by financing activities   11,308,000   1,588,000 
         
Net change in cash   5,424,000   61,000 
Cash, beginning of period   726,000   102,000 
         
Cash, end of period  $ 6,150,000  $ 163,000 
         
Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:         

Initial recognition of right-of-use lease asset and lease liability  $ -  $ 2,706,000 
Common stock issued for conversion of related party debt  $ 400,000  $ - 
Accrued interest converted into principal  $ 29,000  $ - 

Supplemental schedule of cash flow information:         
Interest paid  $ 29,000  $ 46,000 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.
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 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
(Unaudited)

 
NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND REVERSE STOCK SPLIT
 
Basis of Presentation

 
The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) applicable to interim reports of companies filing as a
smaller reporting company. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes thereto contained in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 filed with the SEC on September 28, 2020. In the opinion of management, the accompanying condensed
consolidated interim financial statements include all adjustments necessary in order to make the financial statements not misleading. The results of operations for interim
periods are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year or any other future period. Certain notes to the financial statements that would substantially
duplicate the disclosures contained in the audited financial statements for the most recent fiscal year as reported in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K have been
omitted. The accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2020 has been derived from the audited balance sheet at June 30, 2020 contained in such Form
10-K.
 
Nature of Business

 
Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“Flux”) was incorporated in 1998 in the State of Nevada. On June 14, 2012, Flux entered into a reverse merger and changed its name to

Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (“Flux”). Flux’s operations are conducted through its wholly owned subsidiary, Flux Power, Inc. (“Flux Power”), a California corporation
(collectively, the “Company”).

 
The Company designs, develops, manufactures, and sells advanced rechargeable lithium-ion energy storage solutions for lift trucks, airport ground support equipment

(“GSE”) and other industrial motive applications. The Company’s “LiFT” battery packs, including its proprietary battery management system (“BMS”), provide its customers
with a better performing, cheaper and more environmentally friendly alternative, in many instances, to traditional lead acid and propane-based solutions.

 
The Company has received Underwriters Laboratory (“UL”) Listing on its Class 3 Walkie Pallet Jack (“Class 3 Walkie”) LiFT pack product line in 2016 and expect to

finalize UL listing during calendar 2020 for its other product lines, which include Class 1 Counterbalance/Sit down/Ride-on (“Class 1 Ride-on”) LiFT packs, Class 2 Narrow
Aisle LiFT packs, and Class 3 End Rider LiFT packs. The Company believes that a UL Listing demonstrates the safety, reliability and durability of its products and gives it an
important competitive advantage over other lithium-ion energy suppliers. The Company’s Class 3 Walkie LiFT packs have been approved for use by leading industrial motive
manufacturers, including Toyota Material Handling USA, Inc., Crown Equipment Corporation, and Raymond Corporation.

 
As used herein, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” “Flux,” and “Company” mean Flux Power Holdings, Inc., unless otherwise indicated. All dollar amounts herein are in U.S.

dollars unless otherwise stated
 
Reverse Stock Split
 

The Company effected a 1-for-10 reverse split of its common stock and preferred stock on July 11, 2019 (“2019 Reverse Split”). No fractional shares were issued in
connection with the 2019 Reverse Split. The 2019 Reverse Split resulted in a reduction of the outstanding shares of common stock from 51,000,868 to 5,101,580. In addition, it
resulted in a reduction of the authorized shares of common stock from 300,000,000 to 30,000,000, and a reduction of the authorized shares of preferred stock from 5,000,000 to
500,000. The par value of the Company’s stock remained unchanged at $0.001. In addition, by reducing the number of the Company’s outstanding shares, the Company’s loss
per share in all periods presented was increased by a factor of ten.

 
9



 
 

As the par value per share of the Company’s common stock remained unchanged at $0.001 per share, a total of $46,000 was reclassified from common stock to
additional paid-in capital. In connection with the 2019 Reverse Split, proportionate adjustments have been made to the per share exercise price and the number of shares issuable
upon the exercise or conversion of all outstanding options, warrants, convertible or exchangeable securities entitling the holders to purchase, exchange for, or convert into,
shares of common stock. All references to shares of common stock and per share data for all periods presented in the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto have been adjusted to reflect the 2019 Reverse Split on a retroactive basis.
 
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 
The Company’s significant accounting policies are described in Note 2, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies,” in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-

K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. There have been no material changes in these policies or their application.
 
Management has considered all recent accounting pronouncements issued since the last audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, and believes that

these recent pronouncements will not have a material effect on the Company’s condensed consolidated financial statements.
 
Net Loss Per Common Share

 
The Company calculates basic loss per common share by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the periods. Diluted

loss per common share includes the impact from all dilutive potential common shares relating to outstanding convertible securities.
 
For the three months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, basic and diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding were 9,536,441 and 5,103,342,

respectively. The Company incurred a net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, and therefore, basic and diluted loss per share for the periods are the
same because potential common equivalent shares were excluded from diluted weighted-average common shares outstanding during the period, as the inclusion of such shares
would be anti-dilutive. The total potentially dilutive common shares outstanding at September 30, 2020 and 2019, excluded from diluted weighted-average common shares
outstanding, which include common shares underlying outstanding convertible debt, stock options and warrants, were 1,946,101 and 571,421, respectively.

 
Reclassifications
 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation for comparative purposes.
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NOTE 3 – PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM LOAN
 

On May 1, 2020, the Company applied for and received a loan from the Bank of America, NA (the “BOA”) in the aggregate principal amount of approximately
$1,297,000 (the “PPP Loan”) pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the “PPP”) under the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (the “CARES Act”). The
PPP Loan is evidenced by a promissory note dated May 1, 2020, issued by Flux Power to the BOA (the “PPP Note”). The PPP Loan has a two-year term and bears interest at a
rate of 1.0% per annum. Monthly principal and interest payments are deferred for six months after the date of disbursement. The Company received the funds on or around May
4, 2020. The PPP Note may be prepaid by the Company at any time prior to maturity with no prepayment penalties. Proceeds from the PPP Loan are available to the Company
to fund designated expenses, including certain payroll costs, group health care benefits and other permitted expenses, in accordance with the PPP. Under the terms of the PPP,
subject to specific limitations, up to the entire amount of principal and accrued interest may be forgiven to the extent PPP Loan proceeds are used for qualifying expenses as
described in the CARES Act and applicable implementing guidance issued by the U.S. Small Business Administration under the PPP. The Company intends to use the entire
PPP Loan amount for designated qualifying expenses and to apply for forgiveness of the PPP Loan in accordance with the terms of the PPP. No assurance can be given that the
Company will obtain forgiveness of the PPP Loan in whole or in part. With respect to any portion of the PPP Loan that is not forgiven, the PPP Loan will be subject to
customary provisions for a loan of this type, including customary events of default relating to, among other things, payment defaults, and breaches of the provisions of the PPP
Note. As of September 30, 2020, the outstanding balance of the PPP Loan was approximately $1,297,000.
 
NOTE 4 - RELATED PARTY DEBT AGREEMENTS

 
Esenjay Loan
 

On March 9, 2020, the Company and Esenjay entered into a certain convertible promissory note (“Original Esenjay Note”) pursuant to which Esenjay provided the
Company with a loan in the principal amount of $750,000 (the “Esenjay Loan”). The section below describes the original Esenjay Loan and subsequent changes and
modifications made to the Esenjay Loan through August 31, 2020 at which time $564,000 of remaining principal and accrued interest outstanding under the Esenjay Loan
became part of the Credit Facility Agreement as described below (See “Credit Facility” below).

 
The Original Esenjay Note bore an interest rate of 15% per annum and was originally due on the earlier of: (i) June 30, 2020, unless extended pursuant to the terms

thereunder, or (ii) an occurrence of an event of default. The outstanding obligations under the Original Esenjay Note were convertible into shares of common stock of the
Company at the cash price per share of the equity securities paid by purchasers in the offering at any time upon consummation of an offering of equity securities of at least
$1,000,000 before the maturity date.

 
On June 2, 2020, the Original Esenjay Note was amended and restated to (i) extend the maturity date from June 30, 2020 to September 30, 2020, and (ii) to increase

the principal amount outstanding under the Original Esenjay Note from $750,000 to $1,400,000 (the “Esenjay Note”).
 
On June 26, 2020 and July 22, 2020, Esenjay assigned a total of $900,000 of the Esenjay Note to three (3) accredited investors. On June 30, 2020, in connection with

the completion of the Company’s initial closing of its private placement offering, the principal amount outstanding under the Esenjay Note became convertible into shares of
common stock at $4.00 per share, which was the cash price per share of such offering. The three note holders converted their notes into an aggregate 225,000 shares of common
stock at $4.00 per share.

 
On August 31, 2020, the Company entered into the Third Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement and pursuant to which the Company further amended the

Notes to, among other amended items, to include outstanding obligations for an aggregate amount of approximately$564,000, consisting of $500,000 in principal and
approximately $64,000 in accrued interest, under the Esenjay Note, into the Credit Facility Agreement. (See “Credit Facility” below).
 
Cleveland Loan
 

On July 3, 2019, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Cleveland, pursuant to which Cleveland agreed to loan the Company $1,000,000 (the “Cleveland
Loan”). On August 19, 2020, the Company paid Cleveland the entire remaining principal balance due under the Cleveland Loan, together with all accrued interest payable as of
August 19, 2020, in an aggregate amount of approximately $978,000. The section below describes the original loan agreement and changes and modifications made to the
Cleveland Loan through August 19, 2020.

 
In connection with the Cleveland Loan, on July 3, 2019, the Company issued Cleveland an unsecured short-term promissory note in the amount of $1,000,000 (the

“Unsecured Promissory Note”). The Unsecured Promissory Note bears an interest rate of 15.0% per annum and was originally due on September 1, 2019, unless repaid earlier
from a percentage of proceeds from certain identified accounts receivable. In connection with the Cleveland Loan, the Company issued Cleveland a three-year warrant (the
“Cleveland Warrant”) to purchase the Company’s common stock in a number equal to 0.5% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding after giving effect to the total
number of shares of common stock to be sold in a contemplated public offering and with an exercise price equal to the per share public offering price.
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On September 1, 2019, the Company entered into the First Amendment to the Unsecured Promissory Note pursuant to which the maturity date of the Unsecured
Promissory Note was modified from September 1, 2019 to December 1, 2019 (the “First Amendment”). In connection with the First Amendment, the Company replaced the
Cleveland Warrant with the Amended and Restated Warrant Certificate (the “Amended Warrant”). The Amended Warrant increased the warrant coverage from 0.5% to 1% of
the number of shares of common stock outstanding after giving effect to the total number of shares of common stock sold in the next private or public offering. In addition, the
exercise price was also changed to equal the per share price of common stock sold in such offering. The fair value of such warrants was approximately $174,000. (See Note 6)

 
During the period of December 3, 2019 through June 30, 2020, the Company entered into an additional six amendments (Second Amendment to Seventh Amendment)

to the Unsecured Promissory Note which (i) extended the maturity date of the Unsecured Promissory Note and (ii) capitalized all accrued and unpaid interest to the principal
amount as of the effective date of each of such amendment. The first of such amendments, which was the Second Amendment to the Unsecured Promissory Note, waived any
Event of Default (as defined in the Unsecured Promising Note) arising from the failure of the Company to make the required payment due on maturity date under the First
Amendment.

 
On July 9, 2020, the Company made a payment to Cleveland in the amount of $200,000 as a partial payment of the outstanding principal balance of the Cleveland

Loan.
 
On July 27, 2020, in connection with the outstanding loan from Cleveland to the Company in the principal amount of $1,157,000, the Company entered into the Eighth

Amendment to the Unsecured Promissory Note which extended the maturity date from July 31, 2020 to August 31, 2020, and capitalized all accrued and unpaid interest as of
July 27, 2020 to the principal amount. All accrued and unpaid interest as of July 27, 2020 was capitalized to the principal amount.
 

On August 19, 2020, the Company paid Cleveland the entire remaining principal balance due under the Cleveland Loan, together with all accrued interest payable as
of August 19, 2020, in an aggregate amount of approximately $978,000.
 
Credit Facility
 

On March 22, 2018, Flux Power entered into a credit facility agreement with Esenjay with a maximum borrowing amount of $5,000,000 (the “Original Agreement”).
The Original Agreement was amended multiple times to allow for, among other things, an increase in the maximum principal amount available under line of credit (“LOC”),
additional lenders and extensions of the maturity date. As of September 30, 2020, there was approximately $4,396,000 in principal outstanding under the LOC and
approximately $7,604,000 remained available for future draws. The section below describes the Original Agreement and changes and modifications made to such agreement
through August 31, 2020.

 
Proceeds from the initial credit facility under the Original Agreement put in place on March 22, 2018 were to be used to purchase inventory and related operational

expenses and accrue interest at a rate of 15% per annum. The outstanding balance of the Original Agreement and all accrued interest was due and payable on March 31, 2019.
 
The Original Agreement was amended, among other things, to (i) increase the maximum principal amount available under LOC from $5,000,000 to $7,000,000, (ii)

add Cleveland as additional lender to the LOC pursuant to which each lender has a right to advance a pro rata amount of the principal amount available under the LOC, (iii)
extend the maturity date from March 31, 2019 to December 31, 2019, and (iv) provide for additional parties to become a “Lender” under the Amended and Restated Credit
Facility Agreement. In connection with the LOC, on March 28, 2019 the Company issued a secured promissory note to Cleveland (the “Cleveland Note”), and an amended and
restated secured promissory note to Esenjay which amended and superseded the secured promissory note dated March 22, 2018 (“Esenjay Note” and together with the
Cleveland Note and other secured promissory notes to Lenders (the “Notes”). The Notes were issued for the principal amount of $7,000,000 or such lesser principal amount
advanced by the respective Lender under the Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement. The Notes bore an interest rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum and a
maturity date of December 31, 2019. To secure the obligations under the Notes, Flux Power entered into an Amended and Restated Security Agreement dated March 28, 2019
with the Lenders (as amended, the “Amended Security Agreement”). The Amended Security Agreement amended and restated the Guaranty and Security Agreement dated
March 22, 2018 by and between Esenjay and the Company, and added Cleveland and other Lenders as additional secured parties to the Amended Security Agreement and
appointing Esenjay as collateral agent.
 

On October 10, 2019, the Company entered into a Second Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement and pursuant to which the Company further amended its
line of credit and Notes to increase the maximum principal amount available under line of credit from $7,000,000 to $10,000,000. On December 31, 2019, the Company further
amended the Notes to (i) increase the maximum principal amount available under line of credit from $10,000,000 to $12,000,000, (ii) capitalize all accrued and unpaid interest
to the principal amount as of December 31, 2019, and (iii) extend the maturity date from December 31, 2019 to June 30, 2020. In addition, on December 31, 2019, the
Company granted a right to each of the Lenders to convert their respective Note under the LOC into shares of the Company’s common stock at any time after the close of the
next financing of the Company of at least $1,000,000 on or after December 31, 2019, and on or before the maturity date.
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On June 30, 2020, the Company and the Lenders executed the Third Amendment to the Amended and Restated Secured Promissory Note which (i) extended the
maturity date of the secured Notes from June 30, 2020 to December 31, 2020, and (ii) capitalized all accrued and unpaid interest to the principal amount as of June 30, 2020. In
addition, in connection with the Company’s private placement of up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 to accredited investors for an aggregate amount of
up to approximately $8,000,000, or $4.00 per share of Common Stock (the “Offering”), the Company completed an initial closing of the Offering on June 30, 2020 pursuant to
which an aggregate of 275,000 shares were sold for cash of $1,100,000. As a result of the initial closing of the Offering, each of the Lenders had a right to convert the principal
and accrued interest outstanding under their respective Notes into shares of common stock at $4.00 per share, which was the price per share of common stock sold under the
Offering. On June 30, 2020, the Lenders holding an aggregate of approximately $7,383,000 in principal and accrued interest outstanding under the LOC elected to convert their
Notes into 1,845,830 shares of common stock. Such partial conversion consisted of (a) partial conversion of principal plus interest under the Esenjay LOC Note in the amount of
$4,400,000 into 1,100,000 shares of common stock at $4.00 per share, and (b) conversion of approximately $2,983,000 of principal plus accrued interest held by other Lenders,
including certain assignees of the Esenjay LOC Note, into 745,830 shares of common stock.
 

In August 2020, the Company paid down an aggregate principal amount of approximately $1,402,000 of the outstanding balance under the LOC. On August 31, 2020,
the Company entered into the Third Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement and pursuant to which the Company further amended the Notes to (i) extend the maturity
date from December 31, 2020 to September 30, 2021, and (ii) include outstanding obligations under the Esenjay Note of approximately $564,000, consisting of $500,000 in
principal and approximately $64,000 in accrued interest, into the LOC. As of September 30, 2020, there was approximately $4,396,000 in principal outstanding under the LOC
of which $884,000 was held by Esenjay, $1,720,000 was held by Cleveland, and the balance of $1,792,000 was held by other Lenders. As of September 30, 2020, there was
approximately $7,604,000 available for future draws.
 
NOTE 5 – FACTORING ARRANGEMENT
 

On August 23, 2019, the Company entered into a Factoring Agreement (“Factoring Agreement”) with CSNK Working Capital Finance Corp. d/b/a Bay View Funding
(“CSNK”) for a factoring facility under which CSNK would, from time to time, buy approved receivables from the Company. The Company gave termination notice to CSNK
and accordingly, effective August 30, 2020 has terminated the Factoring Agreement. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, an outstanding balance of $0 and $382,000,
respectively, was due to CNSK under the Factoring Agreement. The section below describes the terms of such factoring agreement prior to its termination.

 
The factoring facility was for an initial term of twelve months and allowed for renewal on a year to year basis thereafter, unless terminated in accordance with the

Factoring Agreement. The Company had the right to terminate the Factoring Agreement at any time upon 60 days prior written notice and payment to CSNK of an early
termination fee equal to 0.5% of the Maximum Credit multiplied by the number of months remaining in the current term. The Company gave termination notice to CSNK and
accordingly, effective August 30, 2020 the Factoring Agreement was terminated. As of September 30, 2020 and 2019, an outstanding balance of $0 and $382,000, respectively,
was due to CNSK under the Factoring Agreement.
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NOTE 6 - STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
 
Public Offering

 
2020 Public Offering and NASDAQ Capital Market uplisting

 
On August 18, 2020, the Company closed an underwritten public offering of its common stock at a public offering price of $4.00 per share for gross proceeds of

approximately $12.4 million, which included the full exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option to purchase additional shares, prior to deducting underwriting discounts
and commissions and offering expenses. A total of 3,099,250 shares of common stock were issued by the Company in the offering, including the full exercise of the over-
allotment option. The securities were offered pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-231766), which was declared effective by the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 12, 2020.

 
Concurrent with the announcement of the public offering, on August 14, 2020, the Company’s common stock commenced trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market

under the symbol “FLUX.” Prior to the listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market, the Company’s common stock was quoted on the OTCQB.
 

Private Placements
 

2019 Private Placement
 

In December 2018, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the private placement of up to 454,546 shares of common stock to select accredited investors for a
total amount of $5,000,000, or $11.00 per share of common stock with the right of the Board to increase the offering amount to $7,000,000 (the “Offering”). On December 26,
2018, the Company completed an initial closing of the Offering, pursuant to which it sold an aggregate of 335,910 shares of common stock, at $11.00 per share, for an
aggregate purchase price of approximately $3,695,000 in cash. A portion of the proceeds from the Offering was used to repay in full approximately $2.6 million in borrowings
and accrued interest under two short-term credit facilities provided by Cleveland Capital, L.P. and a stockholder.

 
On January 29, 2019, the Company conducted its final closing (the “Final Closing”) to its round of private placement to accredited investors that initially closed on

December 26, 2018 (“Initial Closing”). Following the Initial Closing to the Final Closing, the Company sold an additional 63,347 shares of its Common Stock (“Shares”), at
$11.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $697,000 to two accredited investors. The shares offered and sold in the Offering have not been registered
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), and may not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act. The shares were offered and sold to the accredited investors in reliance upon exemptions from registration pursuant to Rule
506(c) of Regulation D promulgated under Section 4(a)(2) under the Securities Act.

 
In the aggregate, the Company issued 399,257 shares of its common stock for an aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $4,392,000 during Fiscal 2019. The

Shares were issued on identical terms to those previously reported for the Initial Closing on the Company’s Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) on December 28, 2018. The Company relied on the exemption from registration pursuant to Rule 506(c) of Regulation D promulgated under Section 4(a)(2) under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
 
2020 Private Placement

 
On April 22, 2020, the Company sold and issued an aggregate of 66,250 shares of common stock, at $4.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $265,000 in

cash to two (2) accredited investors (the “2020 Private Placement”). On June 30, 2020, the Company completed an initial closing of the 2020 Private Placement offering of up
to 2,000,000 shares of common stock, pursuant to which the Company sold an aggregate of 275,000 shares of common stock at $4.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price
of $1,100,000 to six (6) accredited investors. The $1,100,000 aggregate purchase price for such shares was paid in cash. Esenjay and Mr. Dutt, the Company’s president and
chief executive officer, participated in the initial closing in the amount of $300,000 and $50,000, respectively. On July 24, 2020, the Company sold and issued an aggregate of
800,000 shares of common stock, at $4.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $3,200,000 in cash to accredited investors.
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The shares offered and sold in the 2020 Private Placement offering described above were not initially registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(“Securities Act”), and could not be offered or sold in the United States absent registration or an applicable exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
The shares were offered and sold to the accredited investors in reliance upon exemptions from registration pursuant to Rule 506(b) of Regulation D promulgated under Section
4(a)(2) under the Securities Act

 
Debt Conversion
 
LOC Conversion

 
On June 30, 2020, there was a partial conversion of the debt underlying the secured promissory notes issued to lenders under the LOC at a conversion price of $4.00

per share (the “Conversion”). At the option of the lenders, on June 30, 2020, an aggregate of approximately $7,383,000 in principal and accrued interest outstanding under the
LOC was converted into 1,845,830 shares of common stock, which consisted of (a) partial conversion of Principal plus interest under the Esenjay LOC Note in the amount of
$4,400,000 into 1,100,000 shares of common stock at $4.00 per share, and (b) conversion of approximately $2,983,000 of the secured promissory notes issued in connection
with the LOC, principal plus accrued interest, by other lenders, including certain assignees of the Esenjay LOC Note, into 745,830 shares of common stock.
 
Esenjay Note Conversion

 
On June 30, 2020, two (2) accredited individuals, who became note holders to the Esenjay Note pursuant to the assignment of such notes by Esenjay to the note

holders, converted $500,000 in principal into 125,000 shares of common stock at $4.00 per share.
 
On July 22, 2020, one accredited individual, who became note holder to the Esenjay Note pursuant to the assignment of such note by Esenjay to the note holder,

converted $400,000 in principal into 100,000 shares of common stock at $4.00 per share.
 

Warrant Activity
 

On July 3, 2019, the Company issued a three-year warrant to Cleveland Capital, L.P. to purchase up to 83,205 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise
price of $4.00 per share pursuant to the loan agreement dated July 3, 2020. As September 30, 2020, all 83,205 warrants remain outstanding and exercisable. Fair value of the
warrants was approximately $174,000.
 

On August 18, 2020 and in conjunction with the Company’s public offering, the Company issued five-year warrants to the underwriters to purchase up to 185,955
shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $4.80 per share. The underwriters’ warrants become exercisable on or after February 8, 2021. Fair value of the
warrants was approximately $513,000.
 

Warrant detail for the three months ended September 30, 2020 is reflected below:
 

  Number of Warrants   

Weighted Average
Exercise Price Per

Warrant   
Remaining Contract

Term (# years)  
Warrants outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2020   83,205  $ 4.00   2.01 
Warrants issued   185,955  $ 4.80   5.00 
Warrants exchanged   -  $ -   - 
Warrants forfeited   -  $ -   - 
Warrants outstanding at September 30, 2020   269,160  $ 4.55   3.91 
Warrants exercisable at September 30, 2020   83,205  $ 4.00   1.76 

 
15



 
 

Warrant detail for the three months ended September 30, 2019 is reflected below:
 

  Number of Warrants   

Weighted Average
Exercise Price Per

Warrant   
Remaining Contract

Term (# years)  
Warrants outstanding and exercisable at June 30, 2019   8,333  $ 20.00   0.25 
Warrants issued   -  $ -   - 
Warrants exchanged   -  $ -   - 
Warrants forfeited   (8,333)  $ 20.00   - 
Warrants outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2019   -  $ -   - 

 
Stock-based Compensation

 
On November 26, 2014, the board of directors approved the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2014 Plan”), which was approved by the Company’s stockholders on

February 17, 2015. The 2014 Plan offers selected employees, directors, and consultants the opportunity to acquire the Company’s common stock, and serves to encourage such
persons to remain employed by the Company and to attract new employees. The 2014 Plan allows for the award of stock and options, up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock.

 
Activity in stock options during the three months ended September 30, 2020 and related balances outstanding as of that date are reflected below:
 

  Number of Shares   
Weighted Average

Exercise Price   

Weighted Average
Remaining Contract

Term
(# years)  

Outstanding at June 30, 2020   579,584  $ 11.00   7.55 
Granted   -  $ -   - 
Exercised   -  $ -   - 
Forfeited and cancelled   (1,751)  $ 13.60   - 
Outstanding at September 30, 2020   577,833  $ 10.99   7.22 
Exercisable at September 30, 2020   482,300  $ 10.79   6.99 

 
Activity in stock options during the three months ended September 30, 2019 and related balances outstanding as of that date are reflected below:
 

  Number of Shares   
Weighted Average

Exercise Price   

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contract Term
(# years)  

Outstanding at June 30, 2019   580,171  $ 11.05   8.59 
Granted   -  $ -   - 
Exercised   (4,437)  $ 4.69   - 
Forfeited and cancelled   (4,313)  $ 10.34   - 
Outstanding at September 30, 2019   571,421  $ 11.10   8.31 
Exercisable at September 30, 2019   339,420  $ 10.32   7.84 
 

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019,
includes compensation expense for stock-based options and awards granted based on the grant date fair value. For options and awards granted, expenses are amortized under the
straight-line method over the expected vesting period. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the condensed consolidated statements of operations has been reduced
for estimated forfeitures of options that are subject to vesting. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures
differ from those estimates.
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At September 30, 2020, the aggregate intrinsic value of exercisable options was approximately $393,000.
 
The following table summarizes stock-based compensation expense for employee and non-employee option grants:

 

  
Three Months Ended 

September 30,  
  2020   2019  
Research and development  $ 53,000  $ 54,000 
Selling and administrative   172,000   397,000 
Total stock-based compensation expense  $ 225,000  $ 451,000 
 

The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to calculate the fair value of stock options. The fair value of stock options was measured at the grant date using
the assumptions (annualized percentages) in the table below:
 

  
Three Months Ended 

September 30,  
  2020   2019  
Expected volatility   0%  111.4% -112.2%
Risk free interest rate   0%  2.43% - 2.45%
Forfeiture rate   20%  20%
Dividend yield   0%  0%
Expected term (years)   0   5.61 

 
The remaining amount of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense at September 30, 2020 relating to outstanding stock options, is approximately $744,000,

which is expected to be recognized over the weighted-average period of 1.28 years.
 
NOTE 7 - CONCENTRATIONS

 
Credit Risk
 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of temporary cash investments and unsecured trade
accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash balances at a financial institution in San Diego, California. The Company’s cash balance at this institution is secured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. As of September 30, 2020, cash totaled approximately $6,150,000, which consists of funds held in a non-interest bearing
bank deposit account. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes that the Company is not exposed to any significant credit risk with
respect to its cash.
 
Customer Concentrations

 
During the three months ended September 30, 2020, the Company had three (3) major customers that each represented more than 10% of its revenues, on an

individual basis, and together represented approximately $2,965,000 or 66% of its total revenues.
 
During the three months ended September 30, 2019, the Company had three (3) major customers that each represented more than 10% of its revenues, on an

individual basis, and together represented approximately $1,507,000 or 78% of its total revenues.
 
Suppliers/Vendor Concentrations

 
The Company obtains a limited number of components and supplies included in its products from a small group of suppliers. During the three months ended

September 30, 2020, the Company had two (2) suppliers who accounted for more than 10% of its total purchases, on an individual basis, and together represented
approximately $1,834,000 or 28% of its total purchases.
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During the three months ended September 30, 2019, the Company had two (2) suppliers who accounted for more than 10% of its total purchases, on an individual
basis, and together represented approximately $1,033,000 or 44% of its total purchases.

 
NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 

From time to time, the Company may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is
subject to inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm the Company’s business. To the best knowledge of
management, there are no material legal proceedings pending against the Company.

 
Operating Leases

 
On April 25, 2019 the Company signed a Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease (“Lease”) with Accutek to rent approximately 45,600 square feet of

industrial space at 2685 S. Melrose Drive, Vista, California. The Lease has an initial term of seven years and four months, commencing on or about June 28, 2019. The lease
contains an option to extend the term for two periods of 24 months, and the right of first refusal to lease an additional approximate 15,300 square feet. The monthly rental rate is
$42,400 for the first 12 months, escalating at 3% each year.

 
On February 26, 2020, the Company entered into the First Amendment to Standard Industrial/Commercial Multi-Tenant Lease dated April 25, 2019 (the

“Amendment”) with Accutek to rent an additional 16,309 rentable square feet of space plus a residential unit of approximately 1,230 rentable square feet (for a total of
approximately 17,539 rentable square feet). The lease for the additional space commenced 30 days following the occupancy date of the additional space, and terminates
concurrently with the term for the lease of the original lease, which expires on November 20, 2026. The base rent for the additional space is the same rate as the space rented
under the terms of the original lease, $0.93 per rentable square (subject to 3% annual increase). In connection with the Amendment, the Company purchased certain existing
office furniture for a total purchase price of $8,300.

 
Total rent expense was approximately $206,000 and $170,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

 
The Future Minimum Lease Payments as of September 30, 2020 are as follows:

 
Year Ending June 30,     
2021 (remaining nine months)  $ 501,000 
2022   704,000 
2023   726,000 
2024   791,000 
2025   815,000 
Thereafter   1,198,000 
Total Future Minimum Lease Payments   4,735,000 
     
Less: discount   (1,193,000)
Total lease liability  $ 3,542,000 
 
NOTE 9 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
 
Independent audit firm

 
On November 1, 2020, the Company was notified that the audit practice of Squar Milner, LLP (“Squar Milner”) an independent registered public accounting firm, was

combined with Baker Tilly US, LLP (“Baker Tilly”) in a transaction pursuant to which Squar Milner combined its operations with Baker Tilly and certain of the professional
staff and partners of Squar Milner joined Baker Tilly either as employees or partners of Baker Tilly. In connection therewith, on November 1, 2020, Squar Milner resigned as
auditors of the Company and with the approval of the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors, Baker Tilly was engaged as its independent registered public
accounting firm.

 
Credit facility

 
On November 4, 2020, certain holders of the Company’s outstanding convertible debt exercised their rights to convert approximately $2,161,000 in principal and

accrued interest outstanding into 540,347 shares of common stock, at $4.00 per share (the “Conversion Shares”). After giving effect to the issuance of the Conversion Shares, as
of November 10, 2020, there was approximately $2,403,000 outstanding under the LOC and approximately $9,597,000 available for future draws. Following such conversion,
the Company had 11,960,084 shares of common stock outstanding.
 
Adoption of compensation plans

 
On November 5, 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Company’s 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (the “2014 Plan”), to

include the right to grant Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) under the 2014 Plan, and (ii)  an annual cash bonus plan (the “Annual Bonus Plan”).  All of the Company’s executive
officers are eligible to participate in the 2014 Plan.

 
In addition, on November 5, 2020, the Compensation Committee established and approved (i)  the  performance criteria for the Annual Bonus Plan for fiscal year 2021 (“2021
Annual Bonus Plan”), (ii) the maximum bonus pool at approximately $1,299,000 and the target bonus pool of approximately $866,000 for the 2021 Annual Bonus Plan (based
on a percentage of current salary of the participants), (iii)  an equity pool of 48,000 shares under the 2014 Plan for the issuance of RSUs to “salary staff” employee, (iv) the grant
of 43,525 RSUs for one-time retention awards to its executive officers, and (v) the grant of 67,785 RSUs under the 2014 Plan to certain employees of the Company, of which (a)
27,114 RSUs are based on time, and (b) 40,671 RSUs based on performance.  The RSUs are subject to vesting requirements.

 
New bank revolving credit facility

 
On November 9, 2020, the Company entered into a certain Loan and Security Agreement (“Agreement”) with Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”). The Agreement provides

the Company with a senior secured revolving credit facility for up to $4.0 million available on a revolving basis (“Credit Facility”) which matures on November 8, 2021.
Outstanding principal under the Credit Facility accrues interest at a floating per annum rate equal to the greater of either (i) prime rate plus two and one-half of one percent
(2.50%) or (ii) five and three-quarters percent (5.75%). Interest payment is due monthly on the last day of the month. In the event of default, the amounts due under the
Agreement will bear interest at a rate per annum equal to five percent (5.0%) above the rate that is otherwise applicable to such amounts. The Company paid a non-refundable
commitment fee of $15,000 upon execution of the Loan Agreement. In addition, the Company is required to pay a quarterly unused facility fee equal to one-quarter of one
percent (0.25%) per annum of the average daily unused portion of the commitments under the Credit Facility, depending upon availability of borrowings under the Credit
Facility. The loans and other obligations of the Company under the Credit Facility are secured by substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of the Company
(including, without limitation, intellectual property) pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and the Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated as of November 9, 2020.
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 ITEM 2 - MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

 
The following discussion provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of the Company’s results of operations

and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the unaudited interim condensed consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and Part
II, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial condition and Results of Operations contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
June 30, 2020.

 
Business Overview

 
We design, develop, and manufacture advanced rechargeable lithium-ion energy storage solutions for industrial and commercial equipment including stationary power.

Our “LiFT” battery packs, including our proprietary battery management system (“BMS”), provide our customers with a better performing, cheaper and more environmentally
friendly alternative, in many instances, to traditional lead-acid and propane-based solutions. We believe that the increasing demand for lithium-ion battery packs in the material
handling sector continues to drive our current revenue growth.

 
Our long-term strategy is to meet the rapidly growing demand for lithium-ion storage solutions and to be the supplier of choice, targeting large fleets as a priority. We

currently focus on the material handling sector and “natural product extensions” including stationary power and airport ground support equipment.
 

Our business growth continues to reflect sustained momentum in our expanded product rollout, OEM relationships and supply contracts, production capacity increases,
and expanded nation-wide service footprint.
 

Our gross margins have been increasing steadily due to internal initiatives to reduce our production costs through lower vendor pricing from volume purchases, design
improvements, and supplier sourcing. We have two suppliers for largest component of our packs, battery cells, which range from 30% to over 50% of our unit costs, depending
on size of our battery packs. We have used consultants to provide representation and information on sourcing of battery cells from China.
 

Our operating expenses reflect infrastructure to support sales to Fortune 500 fleets and to meet their demands, including timely deliveries and service to nation-wide
locations and quality requirements. Accordingly, we anticipate revenue much faster than the infrastructure in place.
 

Our strategy for sales growth places a high priority on growing relationships with the national account sales forces of the equipment OEMs and ensuring the reputation
of our brand for trust and reliability.

 
On August 18, 2020, we closed an underwritten public offering of our common stock at a public offering price of $4.00 per share for gross proceeds of approximately

$12.4 million, which included the full exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option to purchase additional shares, prior to deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses. A total of 3,099,250 shares of common stock were issued in the offering, including the full exercise of the over-allotment option.

 
Concurrent with the announcement of our public offering, on August 14, 2020, our common stock commenced trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the

symbol “FLUX.” Prior to the listing on The NASDAQ Capital Market, our common stock was quoted on the OTCQB.
 
Recent Developments
 
COVID-19 Update

 
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the state government, California, where our manufacturing facility is located—had issued orders requiring businesses that do

not conduct essential services to temporarily close their physical workplaces to employees and customers. We were deemed an essential business and, as a result, were exempt
from those state orders. In March 2020, we put in place a number of protective measures in response to the COVID-19 outbreak.

 
These measures include the cancelling of all non-critical commercial air travel and all other travel, requesting that employees limit non-essential personal travel,

eliminating all but essential third-party access to our facilities, enhancing our facilities’ janitorial and sanitary procedures, encouraging employees to work from home to the
extent their job function enables them to do so, encouraging the use of virtual employee meetings, and providing staggered work hours and social distancing measures for those
employees associated with manufacturing and service operations.

 
We cannot predict at this time the full extent to which COVID-19 will impact our business, results and financial condition, which will depend on many factors. We are

staying in close communication with our employees, customers, suppliers and partners, and acting to mitigate the impact of this dynamic and evolving situation, but there is no
guarantee that we will be able to do so. Although as of the date hereof, we have not observed any material impacts to our supply of components, but the situation is fluid.
 

A number of key part parts for our products are sourced from suppliers in China and the manufacturing situation in China remains variable. Supply chain disruptions
could reduce the availability of key components, increase prices or both.

 
Many of our customers are essential businesses and remain in operation, reflecting the ongoing needs for material handling and contributing our growth trajectory. We

have experience reduced demand from our customers for lithium-ion packs for airport ground support equipment due to reduction in air travel of passengers and cargo.
 
Future changes in applicable government orders or regulations, or changes in the interpretation of existing orders or regulations, could result in further disruptions to

our business that may materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.
 

Independent audit firm
 

On November 1, 2020, the Company was notified that the audit practice of Squar Milner, LLP (“Squar Milner”) an independent registered public accounting firm, was
combined with Baker Tilly US, LLP (“Baker Tilly”) in a transaction pursuant to which Squar Milner combined its operations with Baker Tilly and certain of the professional
staff and partners of Squar Milner joined Baker Tilly either as employees or partners of Baker Tilly. In connection therewith, on November 1, 2020, Squar Milner resigned as
auditors of the Company and with the approval of the Audit Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors, Baker Tilly was engaged as its independent registered public
accounting firm.

 
Credit facility

 
On November 4, 2020, certain holders of the Company’s outstanding convertible debt exercised their rights to convert approximately $2,161,000 in principal and

accrued interest outstanding into 540,347 shares of common stock, at $4.00 per share (the “Conversion Shares”). After giving effect to the issuance of the Conversion Shares, as
of November 10, 2020, there was approximately $2,403,000 outstanding under the LOC and approximately $9,597,000 available for future draws. Following such conversion,
the Company had 11,960,084 shares of common stock outstanding.

 
Adoption of compensation plans
 

On November 5, 2020, our Board of Directors approved an amendment to its 2014 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (the “2014 Plan”), to include the right to grant
Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs”) under the 2014 Plan, and (ii)  an annual cash bonus plan (the “Annual Bonus Plan”).  All of our executive officers are eligible to participate in
the 2014 Plan.



 
In addition, on November 5, 2020, the Compensation Committee established and approved (i)  the  performance criteria for the Annual Bonus Plan for fiscal year 2021

(“2021 Annual Bonus Plan”), (ii) the maximum bonus pool at approximately $1,299,000 and the target bonus pool of approximately $866,000 for the 2021 Annual Bonus Plan
(based on a percentage of current salary of the participants), (iii)  an equity pool of 48,000 shares under the 2014 Plan for the issuance of RSUs to “salary staff” employee, (iv)
the grant of 43,525 RSUs for one-time retention awards to its executive officers, and (v) the grant of 67,785 RSUs under the 2014 Plan to certain employees of the Company, of
which (a) 27,114 RSUs are based on time, and (b) 40,671 RSUs based on performance.  The RSUs are subject to vesting requirements.
 
New bank revolving credit facility

 
On November 9, 2020, we entered into a certain Loan and Security Agreement (“Agreement”) with Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”). The Agreement provides us with a

senior secured revolving credit facility for up to $4.0 million available on a revolving basis (“Credit Facility”) which matures on November 8, 2021. Outstanding principal under
the Credit Facility accrues interest at a floating per annum rate equal to the greater of either (i) prime rate plus two and one-half of one percent (2.50%) or (ii) five and three-
quarters percent (5.75%). Interest payment is due monthly on the last day of the month. In the event of default, the amounts due under the Agreement will bear interest at a rate
per annum equal to five percent (5.0%) above the rate that is otherwise applicable to such amounts. We paid a non-refundable commitment fee of $15,000 upon execution of the
Loan Agreement. In addition, we are required to pay a quarterly unused facility fee equal to one-quarter of one percent (0.25%) per annum of the average daily unused portion
of the commitments under the Credit Facility, depending upon availability of borrowings under the Credit Facility. The loans and other obligations of the Company under the
Credit Facility are secured by substantially all of the tangible and intangible assets of the Company (including, without limitation, intellectual property) pursuant to the terms of
the Agreement and the Intellectual Property Security Agreement dated as of November 9, 2020.
 
Segment and Related Information

 
We operate as a single reportable segment.
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Results of Operations and Financial Condition

 
The following table represents our unaudited condensed consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2020 and September 30, 2019.

 
  Three Months Ended September 30,  
  2020   2019  

  $   
% of

Revenues   $   
% of

Revenues  
             
Revenues  $ 4,499,000   100% $ 1,919,000   100%

Cost of sales   3,626,000   81%  1,802,000   94%
Gross profit   873,000   19%  117,000   6%
                 
Operating expenses:                 
Selling and administrative expenses   2,920,000   65%  2,262,000   118%
Research and development   1,507,000   33%  1,341,000   70%
Total operating expenses   4,427,000   98%  3,603,000   188%
                 
Operating loss   (3,554,000)   -79%  (3,486,000)   -182%
                 
Interest expense, net   (430,000)   -10%  (328,000)   -17%
                 
Net loss  $ (3,984,000)   -89% $ (3,814,000)   -199%
 
Revenues
 

Our product focus is primarily on lift equipment, reflecting our current products for walkie pallet jacks, and higher capacity packs for Class 1, 2, and 3 forklifts. We
have continued to expand in markets that offer natural applications for our products, including airport ground support equipment (“GSE”) and energy storage for solar EV
charging stations. We feel that we are well positioned to address these markets, which would utilize our modular and scalable battery pack design and technology.

 
We currently sell most of our products through a distribution network of equipment dealers, OEMs and battery distributors in North America. This distribution network

mostly sells to large, multi-facility companies. However, we do sell certain battery packs directly to other customers, including industrial equipment manufacturers and the
ultimate end-user.
 

Revenues for the quarter ended September 30, 2020, increased by $2,580,000 or 134% to $4,499,000, compared to $1,919,000 for the quarter ended September 30,
2019. This increase in revenue was attributable to the increase in battery pack sales for several applications, including Class 1 and Class 2, GSE’s L-Series and stationary storage
for mobile charging stations. The increased sales included sales growth of existing customers as well as the addition of new customers.

 
Cost of Sales

 
Cost of sales for the quarter ended September 30, 2020, increased by $1,824,000, or 101%, to $3,626,000 compared to $1,802,000 for the quarter ended September 30,

2019. The 101% increase in cost of sales on a revenue increase of 134% reflected direct cost reduction and efficiencies. Cost of sales as a percent of revenue for the quarter
ended September 30, 2020 was 81% compared to 94% for the same period last year. The principal drivers of cost reductions in the quarter were simplified component designs,
reduced material costs from higher volume purchasing, reduced warranty related expenses, and lower personnel related costs.

 
Gross Profit

 
Gross profit for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 increased by $756,000 or 646%, to $873,000 compared to $117,000 for the quarter ended September 30, 2019,

and gross profit as a percent of revenues increased to 19% compared to 6%. The increase in gross profit percentage is primarily attributable to increases in sales growth from
both new and existing customers, and to the cost of sales efficiencies noted above.
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

 
Selling and administrative expenses for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 increased by $658,000 or 29%, to $2,920,000 compared to $2,262,000 for the quarter

ended September 30, 2019. The increase is primarily attributable to increases in personnel related expenses, sales commissions, professional liability insurance, shipping/freight
expenses, and board compensation, partially offset by a decrease in stock-based compensation.

 
Research and Development Expense

 
Research and development expenses for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 increased by $166,000 or 12%, to $1,507,000 compared to $1,341,000 for the quarter

ended September 30, 2019. Such expenses consist primarily of materials, supplies, salaries and personnel related expenses, testing costs, consulting costs, and other expenses
associated with the continued development of our packs, as well as research into new product opportunities. The increase in expenses was primarily due to additional general
research expenses related to new product development, partially offset by labor related efficiencies. We anticipate research and development expenses to remain a significant
portion of our expenses as we continue to develop and add new and improved products to our product line-up; however, such expenses, as a percent of revenue, are expected to
be lower going forward.

 
Interest Expense

 
Interest expense for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 increased by $102,000 or 31% to $430,000 compared to $328,000 for the quarter ended September 30, 2019.

Interest expense consist primarily of interest expense related to our outstanding lines of credit and convertible promissory note. Also included in interest expense during the
three months ended September 30, 2020 is additional interest expense of approximately $174,000 of amortization of debt discount related to Cleveland promissory note that is
paid off during the quarter. (see Note 4 to the condensed consolidated financial statements).

 
Net Loss

 
Net loss for the quarter ended September 30, 2020 increased nominally by $170,000 or 4%, to $3,984,000 as compared to $3,814,000 for the quarter ended September

30, 2019. The increase is primarily attributable to increased operating expenses and interest expense, offset by an increase in gross profit.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources

 
Overview

 
As of September 30, 2020, we had a cash balance of $6,150,000 and an accumulated deficit of $57,396,000. We believe our existing cash, combined with additional

funding available under our existing LOC under the Third Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement, as well as our new revolving line of credit with a commercial
bank, will be sufficient to meet our anticipated capital resources to fund planned operations for the next twelve months. See “Future Liquidity Needs” below.

 
Cash Flows

 
Operating Activities

 
Net cash used in operating activities was $5,670,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2020, compared to net cash used in operations of $1,423,000 for the

same period in prior year. The net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended September 30, 2020 reflects the net loss of $3,984,000. The primary reason for the
increase in net cash used in operations was higher increases in accounts receivable and inventory, as well as an increase in net loss as adjusted for noncash operating activities,
and decreases in accounts payable, due to factor, and customer deposits. We continue our efforts to improve our working capital efficiency by improving vendor terms and
inventory levels and decreasing our receivables days outstanding.
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Net cash used in operating activities for the three months ended September 30, 2019 reflects the net loss of $3,814,000 for the period offset primarily by non-cash items
including depreciation, stock-based compensation, as well as, decrease in accounts receivable, increases in accounts payable, drawdowns from factoring facility, and accrued
interest, partially offset by an increase in inventory.

 
Investing Activities

 
Net cash used in investing activities was $214,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2020 and consisted primarily of the costs of internally developed software

and purchase of furniture and equipment and warehouse equipment.
 
Net cash used in investing activities was $104,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2019 and consisted primarily of the purchase of leasehold improvements

and warehouse equipment.
 

Financing Activities
 

Net cash provided by financing activities was $11,308,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2020, which primarily consisted of $13,898,000 in net proceeds
from issuances of common stock in the public offering and the private placement, which were partially offset by $2,580,000 in payments of outstanding related party
borrowings. Net cash provided by financing activities was $1,588,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2019, which primarily consisted of borrowings under the
Company’s Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement. See “Note 4 – Related Party Debt Agreements” above.

 
Future Liquidity Needs

 
We have evaluated our expected cash requirements over the next twelve months, which include, but are not limited to, investments in additional sales and marketing

and product development resources, capital expenditures, and working capital requirements. We believe that our existing cash, combined with additional funding available to us
under our existing Third Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement and our new revolving line of credit with a commercial bank will be sufficient to meet our
anticipated capital resources to fund planned operations for the next twelve months. As of November 10, 2020, after giving effect to the conversion of approximately $2,161,000
in principal and accrued interest outstanding under the LOC into 540,347 shares of common stock, there is approximately $9,597,000 available for future draws under the LOC.
Furthermore, to support our operations, anticipated growth, and execute on our business plan, we intend to continue to work on securing additional capital from a variety of
current and new sources including, but not limited to, a working capital line of credit facility, private placements of convertible debt and/or equity securities and public
offerings of our equity. In addition to raising such additional capital, we have experienced positive gross margin as a result of our gross margin improvement initiative in place
which has improved cash flow from operations. The initiative included design optimization, improved vendor pricing, lower cost electronic boards for the battery management
system, a total redesign of the end rider battery pack, and labor cost efficiencies

 
To the extent that we raise additional funds by issuing equity or convertible debt securities, our shareholders may experience additional significant dilution and such

financing may involve restrictive covenants.
 
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
 

None.
 
Critical Accounting Policies
 

The unaudited interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which
require us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the unaudited financial statements and revenues and
expenses during the periods reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Information with respect to our critical accounting policies which we believe could have
the most significant effect on our reported results and require subjective or complex judgments by management is contained in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2020.
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 ITEM 3 - QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
 

The Company is a smaller reporting company as defined by Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act and is not required to provide the information required under this item.
 
 ITEM 4 - CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

 
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as of the end of the period

covered by this report, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities Act of 1934. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be included in
our SEC reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms, relating to the Company, including our consolidated
subsidiaries, and was made known to them by others within those entities, particularly during the period when this report was being prepared. Based on the management’s
assessment and review of our financial statements and results for the three months ended September 30, 2020, we have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective for purposes stated above.
 

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The Company’s internal control
over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the Company’s financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. All internal control systems, no matter how well
designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurances with respect to financial statement
preparation and presentation. Additionally, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

 
Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
 

There have been no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during the three months ended September 30, 2020 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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 PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
 

 ITEM 1 - LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

From time to time, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings which arise in the ordinary course of business. However, litigation is subject to
inherent uncertainties and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to time that may harm our business. To the best knowledge of management, there are
no material legal proceedings pending against the Company.
 
 ITEM 1A - RISK FACTORS
 

An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks set forth in the section captioned “Risk Factors” in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, filed with the SEC on September 28, 2020, before making an investment decision. If any of the risks
actually occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer. In that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or
part of your investment. You should read the section captioned “Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements” above for a discussion of what types of statements are
forward-looking statements, as well as the significance of such statements in the context of this report.
 
 ITEM 2 - UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 
Warrant
 

On July 3, 2019, we issued Cleveland a three-year warrant (the “Cleveland Warrant”) to purchase our common stock in a number equal to one-half percent (0.5%) of
the number of shares of common stock outstanding after giving effect to the total number of shares of common stock sold in a public offering. The Cleveland Warrant had an
exercise price equal to the per share public offering price. On September 1, 2019, the Cleveland Warrant was amended and restated to change the warrant coverage from 0.5%
to 1% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding after giving effect to the total number of shares of common stock sold in the next private or public offering
(“Offering”). In addition, the exercise price was also changed to equal the per share price of common stock sold in the Offering. The closing of a private offering constituting the
Offering occurred on July 24, 2020. Upon such closing, the Warrant represented a right to purchase up to 83,205 shares of common stock at $4.00 per share (subject to
beneficial ownership limitations).

 
Private Placements
 

On July 24, 2020, we completed an additional closing of the private placement offering of up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock, pursuant to which we sold an
aggregate of 800,000 shares of our common stock at $4.00 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $3,200,000, to twenty (20) accredited investors. The aggregate
purchase price for such shares was paid in cash. Mr. Cosentino, our director, participated in the closing by acquiring 62,500 shares common stock at a purchase price of
$250,000.

 
Conversion of Debt
 

On July 22, 2020, we issued 100,000 shares of common stock to one investor in connection with the conversion of $400,000 in principal under the Esenjay Note.
 

The offers, sales, and issuances of the securities described above were deemed to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance on Section 4(a)(2) of
the Securities Act or Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder as transactions by an issuer not involving a public offering. Each of the recipients of securities in these
transactions was an accredited investor within the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Securities Act.
 
 ITEM 3 - DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
 

None.
 
 ITEM 4 - MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
 

Not applicable.
 
 ITEM 5 - OTHER INFORMATION
 

None.
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 ITEM 6 - EXHIBITS
 

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Report.
 

Exhibit No.  Description
10.1  Form of Representative Warrant*
10.2  Third Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 4, 2020.
10.3  Second Amended and Restated Security Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 4, 2020
10.4  Form of Amended and Restated Promissory Note (LOC Lenders) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 4,

2020.
10.5  Second Amended and Restated Convertible Promissory Note (Esenjay). Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September

4, 2020.
31.1  Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
31.2  Certifications of the Chief Financial Officer under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
32.1  Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
32.2  Certifications of the Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.*
101.INS  XBRL Instance Document*
101.SCH  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema*
101.CAL  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase*
101.DEF  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase*
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase*
101.PRE  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase*

 
* Filed herewith
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 SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

 
 Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
   
Date: November 12, 2020 By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt
  Ronald F. Dutt
  Chief Executive Officer
  (Principal Executive Officer)
 
 By: /s/ Charles A. Scheiwe
  Charles A. Scheiwe
  Chief Financial Officer
  (Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 10.1

 
THE HOLDER OF THIS WARRANT BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF, AGREES THAT IT WILL NOT SELL, TRANSFER OR ASSIGN THIS WARRANT EXCEPT AS
HEREIN PROVIDED AND THE HOLDER OF THIS WARRANT AGREES THAT IT WILL NOT SELL, TRANSFER, ASSIGN, PLEDGE OR HYPOTHECATE THIS
WARRANT FOR A PERIOD OF ONE HUNDRED EIGHTY DAYS FOLLOWING THE LATER OF THE DATE THAT THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT (AS
DEFINED BELOW) IS DECLARED EFFECTIVE BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE COMMENCEMENT OF SALES OF THE
OFFERING TO WHICH THIS WARRANT RELATES TO ANYONE OTHER THAN (I) THE REPRESENTATIVE (AS DEFINED BELOW) AN UNDERWRITER OR A
SELECTED DEALER IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING, OR (II) A BONA FIDE OFFICER OR PARTNER OF THE REPRESENTATIVE OR OF ANY SUCH
UNDERWRITER OR SELECTED DEALER.
 
THIS PURCHASE WARRANT IS NOT EXERCISABLE PRIOR TO FEBRUARY 8, 2021. VOID AFTER 5:00 P.M., EASTERN TIME, AUGUST 12, 2025.

 
FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.

 
Warrant To Purchase Common Stock

 
Warrant No.: RW-___
Number of Shares of Common Stock: [●]
Date of Issuance: August 18, 2020 (“Issuance Date”)
 

Flux Power Holdings, Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, [●], the registered holder hereof or its permitted assigns (the “Holder”), is entitled, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth
below, to purchase from the Company, at the Exercise Price (as defined below) then in effect, at any time or times on or after February 8, 2021 (the “ Initial Exercisability
Date”), but not after 5:00 p.m., Eastern time, on the Expiration Date (as defined below), up to [●]([●]) fully paid non-assessable shares of Common Stock (as defined below),
subject to adjustment as provided herein (the “Warrant Shares”). Except as otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (including
any Warrants to Purchase Common Stock issued in exchange, transfer or replacement hereof, this “Warrant”), shall have the meanings set forth in Section 16. This Warrant is
one of the Representatives’ Warrants to Purchase Common Stock (the “ Warrants”) issued pursuant to (i) that certain Underwriting Agreement, dated as of August 14, 2020
(the “Subscription Date”) by and between the Company and Roth Capital Partners, LLC (the “Representative”), as representative of the several underwriters named therein
(the “Underwriting Agreement”), (ii) the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File number 333-231766 (the “Registration Statement”) and (iii) the Company’s
prospectus dated as of August 14, 2020 (the “Prospectus”) relating to the offering (the “Offering”) of the securities referenced therein (the “Securities”).
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1. EXERCISE OF WARRANT.
 

(a) Mechanics of Exercise. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions hereof (including, without limitation, the limitations set forth in Section
1(f)), this Warrant may be exercised by the Holder at any time or times on or after the Initial Exercisability Date, in whole or in part, by delivery (whether via facsimile,
electronic mail or otherwise) of a written notice, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Exercise Notice”), of the Holder’s election to exercise this Warrant. Within one
(1) Trading Day following the delivery of the Exercise Notice, the Holder shall make payment to the Company of an amount equal to the Exercise Price in effect on the date of
such exercise multiplied by the number of Warrant Shares as to which this Warrant is being exercised (the “Aggregate Exercise Price”) in cash by wire transfer of immediately
available funds or by notifying the Company that this Warrant is being exercised pursuant to a Cashless Exercise (as defined in Section 1(d)). The Holder shall not be required
to deliver the original Warrant in order to effect an exercise hereunder (until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder and the Warrant has been
exercised in full), nor shall any ink-original signature or medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) with respect to any Exercise Notice be required.
Execution and delivery of the Exercise Notice with respect to less than all of the Warrant Shares shall have the same effect as cancellation of the original Warrant and issuance
of a new Warrant evidencing the right to purchase the remaining number of Warrant Shares and the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Warrant to the
Company until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case, the Holder shall surrender this
Warrant to the Company for cancellation within three (3) Trading Days of the date on which the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company. On or before the first (1 st)
Trading Day following the date on which the Holder has delivered the applicable Exercise Notice, the Company shall transmit by facsimile or electronic mail an
acknowledgment of confirmation of receipt of the Exercise Notice, in the form attached to the Exercise Notice, to the Holder and the Company’s transfer agent (the “Transfer
Agent”). So long as the Holder delivers the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise, if applicable) on or prior to the first (1st) Trading Day following the date
on which the Exercise Notice has been delivered to the Company, then on or prior to the earlier of (i) the second (2nd) Trading Day and (ii) the number of Trading Days
comprising the Standard Settlement Period, in each case following the date on which the Exercise Notice has been delivered to the Company, or, if the Holder does not deliver
the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise, if applicable) on or prior to the first (1st) Trading Day following the date on which the Exercise Notice has been
delivered to the Company, then on or prior to the first (1st) Trading Day following the date on which the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise, if
applicable) is delivered (such earlier date, or if later, the earliest day on which the Company is required to deliver Warrant Shares pursuant to this Section 1(a), the “ Share
Delivery Date”), the Company shall (X) provided that the Transfer Agent is participating in The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer
Program, credit such aggregate number of Warrant Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise to the Holder’s or its designee’s balance account with DTC
through its Deposit / Withdrawal At Custodian system, or (Y) if the Transfer Agent is not participating in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program, issue and
dispatch by overnight courier to the address as specified in the Exercise Notice, a certificate, registered in the name of the Holder or its designee, for the number of Warrant
Shares to which the Holder is entitled pursuant to such exercise. The Company shall be responsible for all fees and expenses of the Transfer Agent and all fees and expenses
with respect to the issuance of Warrant Shares via DTC, if any, including without limitation for same day processing. Upon delivery of the Exercise Notice, the Holder shall be
deemed for all corporate purposes to have become the holder of record and beneficial owner of the Warrant Shares with respect to which this Warrant has been exercised,
irrespective of the date such Warrant Shares are credited to the Holder’s DTC account or the date of delivery of the certificates evidencing such Warrant Shares, as the case may
be. If this Warrant is physically delivered to the Company in connection with any exercise pursuant to this Section 1(a) and the number of Warrant Shares represented by this
Warrant submitted for exercise is greater than the number of Warrant Shares being acquired upon an exercise, then the Company shall as soon as practicable and in no event
later than three (3) Trading Days after any exercise and at its own expense, issue and deliver to the Holder (or its designee) a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d))
representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares issuable immediately prior to such exercise under this Warrant, less the number of Warrant Shares with respect
to which this Warrant is exercised. No fractional Warrant Shares are to be issued upon the exercise of this Warrant, but rather the number of Warrant Shares to be issued shall
be rounded to the nearest whole number. The Company shall pay any and all transfer, stamp, issuance and similar taxes, costs and expenses (including, without limitation, fees
and expenses of the Transfer Agent) which may be payable with respect to the issuance and delivery of Warrant Shares upon exercise of this Warrant. The Company’s
obligations to issue and deliver Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms and subject to the conditions hereof are absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any action or
inaction by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against any Person or any action to enforce
the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination; provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to deliver Warrant Shares with respect
to an exercise prior to the Holder’s delivery of the Aggregate Exercise Price (or notice of a Cashless Exercise, if applicable) with respect to such exercise.
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(b) Exercise Price. For purposes of this Warrant, “Exercise Price” means $4.80 per share, subject to adjustment as provided herein.
 
(c) Company’s Failure to Timely Deliver Securities. If the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder the Warrant Shares subject to a

Notice of Exercise by the Share Delivery Date, the Company shall pay to the Holder, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, for each $1,000 of Warrant Shares
subject to such exercise (based on the VWAP of the Common Stock on the date of the applicable Notice of Exercise), $10 per Trading Day (increasing to $20 per Trading Day
on the fifth Trading Day after such liquidated damages begin to accrue) for each Trading Day after such Share Delivery Date until such Warrant Shares are delivered or Holder
rescinds such exercise. In addition to any other rights available to the Holder, if the Company fails to cause the Transfer Agent to transmit to the Holder the Warrant Shares in
accordance with the provisions of Section 1(a) above pursuant to an exercise on or before the Share Delivery Date, and if after such date the Holder is required by its broker to
purchase (in an open market transaction or otherwise) or the Holder’s brokerage firm otherwise purchases, shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale by the
Holder of the Warrant Shares which the Holder anticipated receiving upon such exercise (a “Buy-In”), then the Company shall (A) pay in cash to the Holder the amount, if any,
by which (x) the Holder’s total purchase price (including brokerage commissions, if any) for the shares of Common Stock so purchased exceeds (y) the amount obtained by
multiplying (1) the number of Warrant Shares that the Company was required to deliver to the Holder in connection with the exercise at issue times (2) the price at which the sell
order giving rise to such purchase obligation was executed, and (B) at the option of the Holder, either reinstate the portion of the Warrant and equivalent number of Warrant
Shares for which such exercise was not honored (in which case such exercise shall be deemed rescinded) or deliver to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock that
would have been issued had the Company timely complied with its exercise and delivery obligations hereunder. For example, if the Holder purchases Common Stock having a
total purchase price of $11,000 to cover a Buy-In with respect to an attempted exercise of shares of Common Stock with an aggregate sale price giving rise to such purchase
obligation of $10,000, under clause (A) of the immediately preceding sentence the Company shall be required to pay the Holder $1,000. The Holder shall provide the Company
written notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Buy-In and, upon request of the Company, evidence of the amount of such loss. Nothing herein
shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or
injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely deliver shares of Common Stock upon exercise of the Warrant as required pursuant to the terms hereof. The
Company’s current transfer agent participates in the DTC Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program (“ FAST”). In the event that the Company changes transfer agents while
this Warrant is outstanding, the Company shall use commercially reasonable efforts to select a transfer agent that participates in FAST. While this Warrant is outstanding, the
Company shall request its transfer agent to participate in FAST with respect to this Warrant.
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(d) Cashless Exercise. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Holder may, in its sole discretion, exercise this Warrant in

whole or in part and, in lieu of making the cash payment otherwise contemplated to be made to the Company upon such exercise in payment of the Aggregate Exercise Price,
elect instead to receive upon such exercise the “Net Number” of shares of Common Stock determined according to the following formula (a “Cashless Exercise”):

 
Net Number = (A x B) - (A x C)

B
 

For purposes of the foregoing formula:
 

 A= the total number of shares with respect to which this Warrant is then being exercised.
   
 B= the average of the Closing Sale Prices of the shares of Common Stock (as reported by Bloomberg) for five consecutive Trading Days ending on the date

immediately preceding the Exercise Date.
   
 C= the Exercise Price then in effect for the applicable Warrant Shares at the time of such exercise.

 
If Warrant Shares are issued in such a cashless exercise, the Company acknowledges and agrees that in accordance with Section 3(a)(9) of the Securities Act

of 1933, as amended, the Warrant Shares shall take on the registered characteristics of the Warrants being exercised, and the holding period of the Warrants being exercised
may be tacked on to the holding period of the Warrant Shares. The Company agrees not to take any position contrary to this Section 1(d). Except as expressly set forth in Section
4(b) herein, nothing in this Warrant shall require the Company to effect cash settlement of this Warrant.
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(e) Disputes. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the Company
shall promptly issue to the Holder the number of Warrant Shares that are not disputed and resolve such dispute in accordance with Section 11.

 
(f) Beneficial Ownership. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, the Holder shall not be entitled to receive shares of Common

Stock upon exercise this Warrant to the extent that after giving effect to such exercise, the Holder together with the other Attribution Parties collectively would beneficially own
in excess of 4.99% (the “Maximum Percentage”) of the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to such exercise. For purposes of the
foregoing sentence, the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and the other Attribution Parties shall include the number of shares of
Common Stock held by the Holder and all other Attribution Parties plus the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of this Warrant with respect to which
the determination of such sentence is being made, but shall exclude the number of shares of Common Stock which would be issuable upon (A) exercise of the remaining,
unexercised portion of this Warrant beneficially owned by the Holder or any of the other Attribution Parties and (B) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted
portion of any other securities of the Company (including, without limitation, any convertible notes or convertible preferred stock or warrants, including the other Warrants)
beneficially owned by the Holder or any other Attribution Party subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise analogous to the limitation contained in this Section 1(f). For
purposes of this Section 1(f), beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”), it
being acknowledged by the Holder that the Company is not representing to the Holder that such calculation is in compliance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the
Holder is solely responsible for any schedules required to be filed in accordance therewith. To the extent that the limitation contained in this Section 1(f) applies, the
determination of whether this Warrant is exercisable (in relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates and Attribution Parties) and of which
portion of this Warrant is exercisable shall be in the sole discretion of the Holder, and the Company shall have no obligation to verify or confirm the accuracy of such
determination. In addition, a determination as to any group status as contemplated above shall be determined by the Holder in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange
Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. For purposes of this Warrant, in determining the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock the Holder may
acquire upon the exercise of this Warrant without exceeding the Maximum Percentage, the Holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock as reflected
in (x) the Company’s most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K or other public filing with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”), as the case may be, (y) a more recent public announcement by the Company or (z) any other written notice by the Company or the Transfer
Agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding (the “Reported Outstanding Share Number”). If the Company receives an Exercise Notice from the
Holder at a time when the actual number of outstanding shares of Common Stock is less than the Reported Outstanding Share Number, the Company shall (i) notify the Holder
in writing of the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding and, to the extent that such Exercise Notice would otherwise cause the Holder’s beneficial ownership, as
determined pursuant to this Section 1(f), to exceed the Maximum Percentage, the Holder must notify the Company of a reduced number of Warrant Shares to be purchased
pursuant to such Exercise Notice (the number of shares by which such purchase is reduced, the “Reduction Shares”) and (ii) as soon as reasonably practicable, the Company
shall return to the Holder any exercise price paid by the Holder for the Reduction Shares. For any reason at any time, upon the written request of the Holder, the Company shall
within two (2) Business Days confirm orally and in writing or by electronic mail to such Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the
number of outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this Warrant, by
the Holder and any other Attribution Party since the date as of which the Reported Outstanding Share Number was reported. In the event that the issuance of Common Stock to
the Holder upon exercise of this Warrant results in the Holder and the other Attribution Parties being deemed to beneficially own, in the aggregate, more than the Maximum
Percentage of the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock (as determined under Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act), the number of shares so issued by which the Holder’s
and the other Attribution Parties’ aggregate beneficial ownership exceeds the Maximum Percentage (the “ Excess Shares”) shall be deemed null and void and shall be cancelled
ab initio, and the Holder shall not have the power to vote or to transfer the Excess Shares. As soon as reasonably practicable after the issuance of the Excess Shares has been
deemed null and void, the Company shall return to the Holder the exercise price paid by the Holder for the Excess Shares. Upon delivery of a written notice to the Company, the
Holder may from time to time increase or decrease the Maximum Percentage to any other percentage not in excess of 4.99% as specified in such notice; provided that (i) any
such increase in the Maximum Percentage will not be effective until the sixty-first (61st) day after such notice is delivered to the Company and (ii) any such increase or decrease
will apply only to the Holder and the other Attribution Parties and not to any other holder of Warrants that is not an Attribution Party of the Holder. For purposes of clarity, the
shares of Common Stock issuable pursuant to the terms of this Warrant in excess of the Maximum Percentage shall not be deemed to be beneficially owned by the Holder for
any purpose including for purposes of Section 13(d) or Rule 16a-1(a)(1) of the 1934 Act. No prior inability to exercise this Warrant pursuant to this paragraph shall have any
effect on the applicability of the provisions of this paragraph with respect to any subsequent determination of exercisability. The provisions of this paragraph shall be construed
and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this Section 1(f) to the extent necessary to correct this paragraph or any portion of this
paragraph which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended beneficial ownership limitation contained in this Section 1(f) or to make changes or supplements necessary
or desirable to properly give effect to such limitation. The limitation contained in this paragraph may not be waived and shall apply to a successor holder of this Warrant.
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(g) Required Reserve Amount . So long as this Warrant remains outstanding, the Company shall at all times keep reserved for issuance under this

Warrant a number of shares of Common Stock at least equal to 100% of the maximum number of shares of Common Stock as shall be necessary to satisfy the Company’s
obligation to issue shares of Common Stock under the Warrants then outstanding (without regard to any limitations on exercise) (the “Required Reserve Amount”); provided
that at no time shall the number of shares of Common Stock reserved pursuant to this Section 1(g) be reduced other than in connection with any exercise of Warrants or such
other event covered by Section 2 below. The Required Reserve Amount (including, without limitation, each increase in the number of shares so reserved) shall be allocated pro
rata among the holders of the Warrants based on the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of Warrants held by each holder thereof on the Issuance Date
(without regard to any limitations on exercise) (the “Authorized Share Allocation”). In the event that a holder shall sell or otherwise transfer any of such holder’s Warrants,
each transferee shall be allocated a pro rata portion of such holder’s Authorized Share Allocation. Any shares of Common Stock reserved and allocated to any Person which
ceases to hold any Warrants shall be allocated to the remaining holders of Warrants, pro rata based on the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the
Warrants then held by such holders thereof (without regard to any limitations on exercise).

 
(h) Insufficient Authorized Shares. If at any time while this Warrant remains outstanding the Company does not have a sufficient number of

authorized and unreserved shares of Common Stock to satisfy its obligation to reserve for issuance the Required Reserve Amount (an “Authorized Share Failure”), then the
Company shall promptly take all action reasonably necessary to increase the Company’s authorized shares of Common Stock to an amount sufficient to allow the Company to
reserve the Required Reserve Amount for this Warrant then outstanding. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing sentence, as soon as practicable after the date of the
occurrence of an Authorized Share Failure, but in no event later than ninety (90) days after the occurrence of such Authorized Share Failure, the Company shall hold a meeting
of its stockholders for the approval of an increase in the number of authorized shares of Common Stock. In connection with such meeting, the Company shall provide each
stockholder with a proxy statement and shall use its reasonable best efforts to solicit its stockholders’ approval of such increase in authorized shares of Common Stock and to
cause its board of directors to recommend to the stockholders that they approve such proposal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any such time of an Authorized Share Failure,
the Company is able to obtain the written consent of a majority of the shares of its issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock to approve the increase in the number of
authorized shares of Common Stock, the Company may satisfy this obligation by obtaining such consent and submitting for filing with the SEC an Information Statement on
Schedule 14C.
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2 . ADJUSTMENT OF EXERCISE PRICE AND NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES UPON SUBDIVISION OR COMBINATION OF COMMON
STOCK. (a) Stock Dividends and Splits. If the Company at any time on or after the Subscription Date subdivides (by any stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization or
otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a greater number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to such subdivision
will be proportionately reduced and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately increased. If the Company at any time on or after the Subscription Date combines (by
combination, reverse stock split or otherwise) one or more classes of its outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares, the Exercise Price in effect
immediately prior to such combination will be proportionately increased and the number of Warrant Shares will be proportionately decreased. Any adjustment under this
Section 2(a) shall become effective at the close of business on the date the subdivision or combination becomes effective.

 
(b) Voluntary Adjustment by Company. The Company may at any time during the term of this Warrant reduce the then current Exercise Price to any amount

and for any period of time deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors of the Company.
 
3. [RESERVED]
 
4. FUNDAMENTAL TRANSACTIONS. The Company shall not enter into or be party to a Fundamental Transaction unless the Successor Entity assumes in

writing all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant in accordance with the provisions of this Section 4, including agreements to deliver to the Holder in exchange
for this Warrant a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Warrant, including, without limitation,
which is exercisable for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon exercise of this Warrant
(without regard to any limitations on the exercise of this Warrant) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with an exercise price which applies the exercise price hereunder
to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental Transaction and the value of such shares
of capital stock, such adjustments to the number of shares of capital stock and such exercise price being for the purpose of protecting the economic value of this Warrant
immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction). Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of an all-cash sale of the Company, at the Company’s
option, the Company or the Successor Entity shall have the right to purchase this Warrant from the Holder by paying to the Holder on the effective date of the Fundamental
Transaction, cash in an amount equal to the Black-Scholes Value of the remaining unexercised portion of this Warrant on the date of such Fundamental Transaction. Except in
the case of the purchase of this Warrant pursuant to the terms of the immediately preceding sentence, upon the consummation of each Fundamental Transaction, the Successor
Entity shall succeed to, and be substituted for the Company (so that from and after the date of the applicable Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Warrant and the
other Transaction Documents referring to the “Company” shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every right and power of the Company and shall assume
all of the obligations of the Company under this Warrant with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had been named as the Company herein. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, and without limiting Section 1(f) hereof, the Holder may elect, at its sole option, by delivery of written notice to the Company to waive this Section 4 to permit the
Fundamental Transaction without the assumption of this Warrant. In addition to and not in substitution for any other rights hereunder, prior to the consummation of each
Fundamental Transaction pursuant to which holders of shares of Common Stock are entitled to receive securities or other assets with respect to or in exchange for shares of
Common Stock (a “Corporate Event”), the Company shall make appropriate provision to insure that the Holder will thereafter have the right to receive upon an exercise of this
Warrant at any time after the consummation of the applicable Fundamental Transaction but prior to the Expiration Date, in lieu of the shares of the Common Stock (or other
securities, cash, assets or other property (except such items still issuable under Sections 3 and 4(a) above, which shall continue to be receivable thereafter)) issuable upon the
exercise of the Warrant prior to such Fundamental Transaction, such shares of stock, securities, cash, assets or any other property whatsoever (including warrants or other
purchase or subscription rights) (collectively, the “Corporate Event Consideration”) which the Holder would have been entitled to receive upon the happening of the
applicable Fundamental Transaction had this Warrant been exercised immediately prior to the applicable Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitations on the
exercise of this Warrant). The provision made pursuant to the preceding sentence shall be in a form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder. The provisions of this
Section 4 shall apply similarly and equally to successive Fundamental Transactions and Corporate Events. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, in the event of a
Fundamental Transaction, the Company or any Successor Entity shall, at the Holder’s option, exercisable at any time concurrently with, or within 30 days after, the
consummation of the Fundamental Transaction (or, if later, the date of the public announcement of the applicable Fundamental Transaction), purchase this Warrant from the
Holder by paying to the Holder an amount of cash equal to the Black-Scholes Value of the remaining unexercised portion of this Warrant on the date of the consummation of
such Fundamental Transaction; provided, however, if the Fundamental Transaction is not within the Company’s control, including not approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors, Holder shall only be entitled to receive from the Company or any Successor Entity, as of the date of consummation of such Fundamental Transaction, the same type
or form of consideration (and in the same proportion), at the Black-Scholes Value of the unexercised portion of this Warrant, that is being offered and paid to the holders of
Common Stock of the Company in connection with the Fundamental Transaction, whether that consideration be in the form of cash, shares or any combination thereof, or
whether the holders of Common Stock are given the choice to receive from among alternative forms of consideration in connection with the Fundamental Transaction.
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5. NONCIRCUMVENTION. The Company hereby covenants and agrees that the Company will not, by amendment of its Certificate of Incorporation or

Bylaws, or through any reorganization, transfer of assets, consolidation, merger, scheme, arrangement, dissolution, issuance or sale of securities, or any other voluntary action,
avoid or seek to avoid the observance or performance of any of the terms of this Warrant, and will at all times in good faith carry out all of the provisions of this Warrant and
take all action as may be required to protect the rights of the Holder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company (i) shall not increase the par value of any
shares of Common Stock receivable upon the exercise of this Warrant above the Exercise Price then in effect, (ii) shall take all such actions as may be necessary or appropriate
in order that the Company may validly and legally issue fully paid and nonassessable shares of Common Stock upon the exercise of this Warrant, and (iii) shall, so long as any
of the Warrants are outstanding, take all action necessary to reserve and keep available out of its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock, solely for the purpose of
effecting the exercise of the Warrants, the number of shares of Common Stock as shall from time to time be necessary to effect the exercise of the Warrants then outstanding
(without regard to any limitations on exercise).

 
6 . WARRANT HOLDER NOT DEEMED A STOCKHOLDER . Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Holder, solely in such Person’s

capacity as a holder of this Warrant, shall not be entitled to vote or receive dividends or be deemed the holder of capital stock of the Company for any purpose, nor shall
anything contained in this Warrant be construed to confer upon the Holder, solely in such Person’s capacity as the Holder of this Warrant, any of the rights of a stockholder of
the Company or any right to vote, give or withhold consent to any corporate action (whether any reorganization, issue of stock, reclassification of stock, consolidation, merger,
conveyance or otherwise), receive notice of meetings, receive dividends or subscription rights, or otherwise, prior to the issuance to the Holder of the Warrant Shares which
such Person is then entitled to receive upon the due exercise of this Warrant. In addition, nothing contained in this Warrant shall be construed as imposing any liabilities on the
Holder to purchase any securities (upon exercise of this Warrant or otherwise) or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liabilities are asserted by the Company or by
creditors of the Company. Notwithstanding this Section 6, the Company shall provide the Holder with copies of the same notices and other information given to the stockholders
of the Company generally, contemporaneously with the giving thereof to the stockholders; provided that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein or in the delivery
thereof shall not affect the validity of any corporate action required to be specified in such notice.

 
7. REISSUANCE OF WARRANTS.
 

(a) Transfer of Warrant. If this Warrant is to be transferred, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company and deliver a completed and
executed form or assignment, substantially in the form of the Assignment Form attached hereto as Exhibit B, whereupon the Company will forthwith issue and deliver upon the
order of the Holder a new Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)), registered as the Holder may request, representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares
being transferred by the Holder and, if less than the total number of Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant is being transferred, a new Warrant (in accordance with
Section 7(d)) to the Holder representing the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares not being transferred.

 
(b) Lost, Stolen or Mutilated Warrant. Upon receipt by the Company of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction or mutilation of this Warrant, and, in the case of loss, theft or destruction, of any indemnification undertaking by the Holder to the Company in customary form (but
without the obligation to post a bond) and, in the case of mutilation, upon surrender and cancellation of this Warrant, the Company shall execute and deliver to the Holder a new
Warrant (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this Warrant.

 
(c) Exchangeable for Multiple Warrants. This Warrant is exchangeable, upon the surrender hereof by the Holder at the principal office of the

Company, for a new Warrant or Warrants (in accordance with Section 7(d)) representing in the aggregate the right to purchase the number of Warrant Shares then underlying
this Warrant, and each such new Warrant will represent the right to purchase such portion of such Warrant Shares as is designated by the Holder at the time of such surrender.
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(d) Issuance of New Warrants . Whenever the Company is required to issue a new Warrant pursuant to the terms of this Warrant, such new Warrant

(i) shall be of like tenor with this Warrant, (ii) shall represent, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant, the right to purchase the Warrant Shares then underlying this
Warrant (or in the case of a new Warrant being issued pursuant to Section 7(a) or Section 7(c), the Warrant Shares designated by the Holder which, when added to the number of
shares of Common Stock underlying the other new Warrants issued in connection with such issuance, does not exceed the number of Warrant Shares then underlying this
Warrant), (iii) shall have an issuance date, as indicated on the face of such new Warrant which is the same as the Issuance Date, and (iv) shall have the same rights and
conditions as this Warrant.

 
8. NOTICES. Whenever notice is required to be given under this Warrant, including, without limitation, an Exercise Notice, unless otherwise provided

herein, such notice shall be given in writing, (i) if delivered (a) from within the domestic United States, by first-class registered or certified airmail, or nationally recognized
overnight express courier, postage prepaid, electronic mail or by facsimile or (b) from outside the United States, by International Federal Express, electronic mail or facsimile,
and (ii) will be deemed given (A) if delivered by first-class registered or certified mail domestic, three (3) Business Days after so mailed, (B) if delivered by nationally
recognized overnight carrier, one (1) Business Day after so mailed, (C) if delivered by International Federal Express, two (2) Business Days after so mailed and (D) at the time
of transmission, if delivered by electronic mail to the email address specified in this Section 8 prior to 5:00 p.m. (New York time) on a Trading Day, (E) the next Trading Day
after the date of transmission, if delivered by electronic mail to the email address specified in this Section 8 on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:00 p.m. (New York
time) on any Trading Day and (F) if delivered by facsimile, upon electronic confirmation of delivery of such facsimile, and will be delivered and addressed as follows:

 
(i) if to the Company, to:

Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
2685 S. Melrose Drive
Vista, CA 92081
Attention: Chief Financial Officer
Facsimile: 760-741-3535
Email: cscheiwe@fluxpower.com

(ii) if to the Holder, at such address or other contact information delivered by the Holder to Company or as is on the books and records of the Company.
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The Company shall provide the Holder with prompt written notice of all actions taken pursuant to this Warrant, including in reasonable detail a description of such action and
the reason therefor. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Company will give written notice to the Holder (i) immediately upon any adjustment of the Exercise
Price, setting forth in reasonable detail, and certifying, the calculation of such adjustment and (ii) at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date on which the Company closes its
books or takes a record (A) with respect to any dividend or distribution upon the shares of Common Stock, (B) with respect to any grants, issuances or sales of any Options,
Convertible Securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property pro rata to the record holders of any class of Common Stock or (C) for determining
rights to vote with respect to any Fundamental Transaction, dissolution or liquidation; provided in each case that such information shall be made known to the public prior to or
in conjunction with such notice being provided to the Holder; provided, further, that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein or in the delivery thereof shall not
affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice. It is expressly understood and agreed that the time of exercise specified by the Holder in each
Exercise Notice shall be definitive and may not be disputed or challenged by the Company.
 

9. AMENDMENT AND WAIVER. Except as otherwise provided herein, the provisions of this Warrant may be amended or waived and the Company may
take any action herein prohibited, or omit to perform any act herein required to be performed by it, only if the Company has obtained the written consent of the Holders of
Warrants to purchase a majority of the Warrant Shares sold pursuant to the Registration Statement.

 
10. GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION; JURY TRIAL. This Warrant shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with, and all

questions concerning the construction, validity, interpretation and performance of this Warrant shall be governed by, the internal laws of the State of New York, without giving
effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the State of New York or any other jurisdictions) that would cause the application of the laws of any
jurisdictions other than the State of New York. The Company hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts sitting in The City of New
York, Borough of Manhattan, for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or discussed herein, and
hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such court, that such suit,
action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the venue of such suit, action or proceeding is improper. The Company hereby irrevocably waives personal
service of process and consents to process being served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof to the Company at the address set forth in Section 8(i)
above or such other address as the Company subsequently delivers to the Holder and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice
thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any manner permitted by law. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed or
operate to preclude the Holder from bringing suit or taking other legal action against the Company in any other jurisdiction to collect on the Company’s obligations to the
Holder, to realize on any collateral or any other security for such obligations, or to enforce a judgment or other court ruling in favor of the Holder. If either party shall
commence an action, suit or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this Warrant, the prevailing party in such action, suit or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party
for their reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred with the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding. THE COMPANY
HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE, AND AGREES NOT TO REQUEST, A JURY TRIAL FOR THE ADJUDICATION OF ANY
DISPUTE HEREUNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS WARRANT OR ANY TRANSACTION CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.
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11. DISPUTE RESOLUTION. In the case of a dispute as to the determination of the Exercise Price or the arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares, the

Company shall submit the disputed determinations or arithmetic calculations via facsimile or electronic mail within two (2) Business Days of receipt of the Exercise Notice or
other event giving rise to such dispute, as the case may be, to the Holder. If the Holder and the Company are unable to agree upon such determination or calculation of the
Exercise Price or the Warrant Shares within three (3) Business Days of such disputed determination or arithmetic calculation being submitted to the Holder, then the Company
shall, within two (2) Business Days submit via facsimile or electronic mail (a) the disputed determination of the Exercise Price to an independent, reputable investment bank
selected by the Company and approved by the Holder or (b) the disputed arithmetic calculation of the Warrant Shares to the Company’s independent, outside accountant. The
Company shall cause at its expense the investment bank or the accountant, as the case may be, to perform the determinations or calculations and notify the Company and the
Holder of the results no later than ten (10) Business Days from the time it receives the disputed determinations or calculations. Such investment bank’s or accountant’s
determination or calculation, as the case may be, shall be binding upon all parties absent demonstrable error.

 
12. REMEDIES, OTHER OBLIGATIONS, BREACHES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF. The remedies provided in this Warrant shall be cumulative and in

addition to all other remedies available under this Warrant, at law or in equity (including a decree of specific performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein
shall limit the right of the Holder to pursue actual damages for any failure by the Company to comply with the terms of this Warrant. The Company acknowledges that a breach
by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees
that, in the event of any such breach or threatened breach, the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach, without
the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.

 
13. TRANSFER. The registered Holder of this Warrant agrees by his, her or its acceptance hereof, that such Holder will not: (a) sell, transfer, assign, pledge

or hypothecate this Warrant for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days following the later of the date that the Registration Statement is declared effective by the SEC or the
commencement of sales of the Offering (the later of such dates, the “Transferability Date”) to anyone other than: (i) a Representative or an underwriter or a selected dealer
participating in the Offering, or (ii) a bona fide officer or partner of a Representative or of any such underwriter or selected dealer, in each case in accordance with FINRA
Conduct Rule 5110(g)(1), or (b) cause this Warrant or the securities issuable hereunder to be the subject of any hedging, short sale, derivative, put or call transaction that would
result in the effective economic disposition of this Warrant or the securities hereunder, except as provided for in FINRA Rule 5110(g)(2). On and after the Transferability Date,
transfers to others may be made subject to compliance with applicable securities laws.
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14. SEVERABILITY; CONSTRUCTION; HEADINGS. If any provision of this Warrant is prohibited by law or otherwise determined to be invalid or

unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the provision that would otherwise be prohibited, invalid or unenforceable shall be deemed amended to apply to the broadest
extent that it would be valid and enforceable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of such provision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Warrant so
long as this Warrant as so modified continues to express, without material change, the original intentions of the parties as to the subject matter hereof and the prohibited nature,
invalidity or unenforceability of the provision(s) in question does not substantially impair the respective expectations or reciprocal obligations of the parties or the practical
realization of the benefits that would otherwise be conferred upon the parties. The parties will endeavor in good faith negotiations to replace the prohibited, invalid or
unenforceable provision(s) with a valid provision(s), the effect of which comes as close as possible to that of the prohibited, invalid or unenforceable provision(s). This Warrant
shall be deemed to be jointly drafted by the Company and the Holder and shall not be construed against any Person as the drafter hereof. The headings of this Warrant are for
convenience of reference and shall not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Warrant.

 
15. DISCLOSURE. Upon receipt or delivery by the Company of any notice in accordance with the terms of this Warrant, unless the Company has in good

faith determined that the matters relating to such notice do not constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its subsidiaries, the Company shall
contemporaneously with any such receipt or delivery publicly disclose such material, nonpublic information on a Current Report on Form 8-K or otherwise. In the event that the
Company believes that a notice contains material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its subsidiaries, the Company so shall indicate to such Holder
contemporaneously with delivery of such notice, and in the absence of any such indication, the Holder shall be allowed to presume that all matters relating to such notice do not
constitute material, nonpublic information relating to the Company or its subsidiaries.

 
16. CERTAIN DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Warrant, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
 

(a) “Affiliate” means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, controls or is controlled by or is under common
control with a Person, as such terms are used in and construed under Rule 405 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

 
(b) “Attribution Parties” means, collectively, the following Persons and entities: (i) any investment vehicle, including, any funds, feeder funds or

managed accounts, currently, or from time to time after the Subscription Date, directly or indirectly managed or advised by the Holder’s investment manager or any of its
Affiliates or principals, (ii) any direct or indirect Affiliates of the Holder or any of the foregoing, (iii) any Person acting or who could be deemed to be acting as a Group
together with the Holder or any of the foregoing and (iv) any other Persons whose beneficial ownership of the Company’s Common Stock would or could be aggregated with
the Holder’s and the other Attribution Parties for purposes of Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act. For clarity, the purpose of the foregoing is to subject collectively the Holder and all
other Attribution Parties to the Maximum Percentage.
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(c) “Bid Price” means, for any security as of the particular time of determination, the bid price for such security on the Principal Market as reported

by Bloomberg as of such time of determination, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal securities exchange or trading market for such security, the bid price of such
security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg as of such time of determination, or if the
foregoing does not apply, the bid price of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security as reported by Bloomberg as of such
time of determination, or, if no bid price is reported for such security by Bloomberg as of such time of determination, the average of the bid prices of any market makers for
such security as reported in the “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink Sheets LLC) as of such time of determination. If the Bid Price cannot be calculated for
a security as of the particular time of determination on any of the foregoing bases, the Bid Price of such security as of such time of determination shall be the fair market value as
mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such dispute shall be
resolved in accordance with the procedures in Section 11. All such determinations shall be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination or other
similar transaction during such period.

 
(d) “Bloomberg” means Bloomberg Financial Markets.
 
(e) “Black-Scholes Value” means the value of this Warrant calculated using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model obtained from the “OV”

function on Bloomberg determined as of the day immediately following the public announcement of the applicable Fundamental Transaction, or, if the Fundamental
Transaction is not publicly announced, the date the Fundamental Transaction is consummated, for pricing purposes and reflecting (i) a risk-free interest rate corresponding to
the U.S. Treasury rate for a period equal to the remaining term of this Warrant as of such date of request, (ii) an expected volatility equal to the greater of 100% and the 100 day
volatility obtained from the HVT function on Bloomberg as of the Trading Day immediately following the public announcement of the applicable Fundamental Transaction, or,
if the Fundamental Transaction is not publicly announced, the date the Fundamental Transaction is consummated, (iii) the underlying price per share used in such calculation
shall be the greater of (x) the highest Weighted Average Price of the Common Stock during the period beginning on the Trading Day prior to the execution of definitive
documentation relating to the applicable Fundamental Transaction and ending on (A) the Trading Day immediately following the public announcement of such Fundamental
Transaction, if the applicable Fundamental Transaction is publicly announced or (B) the Trading Day immediately following the consummation of the applicable Fundamental
Transaction if the applicable Fundamental Transaction is not publicly announced and (y) the sum of the price per share being offered in cash, if any, plus the value of any non-
cash consideration, if any, being offered in the Fundamental Transaction, (iv) a zero cost of borrow and (v) a 365 day annualization factor.

 
(f) “Business Day” means any day other than Saturday, Sunday or other day on which commercial banks in The City of New York are authorized or

required by law or executive order to remain closed; provided, however, for clarification, commercial banks shall not be deemed to be authorized or required by law or
executive order to close due to “stay at home”, “shelter-in-place”, “non-essential employee” or any other similar orders or restrictions or the closure of any physical branch
locations at the direction of any governmental entity so long as the electronic funds transfer systems (including for wire transfers) of commercial banks in such location
generally are open for use by customers on such day.

 
 -13-  



 
 
(g) “Closing Bid Price” and “Closing Sale Price” means, for any security as of any date, the last closing bid price and last closing trade price,

respectively, for such security on the Principal Market, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market begins to operate on an extended hours basis and does not designate
the closing bid price or the closing trade price, as the case may be, then the last bid price or the last trade price, respectively, of such security prior to 4:00:00 p.m., New York
time, as reported by Bloomberg, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal securities exchange or trading market for such security, the last closing bid price or last trade
price, respectively, of such security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded as reported by Bloomberg, or if the foregoing do
not apply, the last closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board for such security as reported
by Bloomberg, or, if no closing bid price or last trade price, respectively, is reported for such security by Bloomberg, the average of the bid prices, or the ask prices,
respectively, of any market makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the Closing
Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Closing Bid Price or the Closing Sale Price, as the
case may be, of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to
agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such dispute shall be resolved pursuant to Section 11. All such determinations to be appropriately adjusted for any stock
dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

 
(h) “Common Stock” means (i) the Company’s Common Stock, par value $0.001 per share, and (ii) any capital stock into which such Common

Stock shall have been changed or any capital stock resulting from a reclassification of such Common Stock.
 
(i) “Convertible Securities” means any stock or securities (other than Options) directly or indirectly convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable

for shares of Common Stock.
 
(j) “Eligible Market” means The Nasdaq Capital Market, the NYSE American LLC, The Nasdaq Global Select Market, The Nasdaq Global Market

or The New York Stock Exchange, Inc.
 
(k) “Expiration Date” means August 12, 2025.
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(l) “Fundamental Transaction” means (A) that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, including through subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in

one or more related transactions, (i) consolidate or merge with or into (whether or not the Company is the surviving corporation) another Subject Entity (but excluding a merger
effected solely for the purpose of changing the jurisdiction of incorporation of the Company),, or (ii) sell, assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all
of the properties or assets of the Company or any of its “significant subsidiaries” (as defined in Rule 1-02 of Regulation S-X) to one or more Subject Entities, or (iii) make, or
allow one or more Subject Entities to make, or allow the Company to be subject to or have its shares of Common Stock be subject to or party to one or more Subject Entities
making, a purchase, tender or exchange offer that is accepted by the holders of at least either (x) 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) 50% of the outstanding
shares of Common Stock calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entities making or party to,
such purchase, tender or exchange offer were not outstanding; or (z) such number of shares of Common Stock such that all Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated
with any Subject Entity making or party to, such purchase, tender or exchange offer, become collectively the beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act) of
at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (iv) consummate a stock purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a
reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with one or more Subject Entities whereby all such Subject Entities, individually or in the aggregate,
acquire, either (x) at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock calculated as if any shares of Common
Stock held by all the Subject Entities making or party to, or Affiliated with any Subject Entity making or party to, such stock purchase agreement or other business combination
were not outstanding; or (z) such number of shares of Common Stock such that the Subject Entities become collectively the beneficial owners (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under
the 1934 Act) of at least 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (v) reorganize, recapitalize or reclassify its shares of Common Stock, (B) that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, including through subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in one or more related transactions, allow any Subject Entity individually or the Subject Entities in
the aggregate to be or become the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under the 1934 Act), directly or indirectly, whether through acquisition, purchase, assignment,
conveyance, tender, tender offer, exchange, reduction in outstanding shares of Common Stock, merger, consolidation, business combination, reorganization, recapitalization,
spin-off, scheme of arrangement, reorganization, recapitalization or reclassification or otherwise in any manner whatsoever, of either (x) at least 50% of the aggregate ordinary
voting power represented by issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock, (y) at least 50% of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding
shares of Common Stock not held by all such Subject Entities as of the Subscription Date calculated as if any shares of Common Stock held by all such Subject Entities were
not outstanding, or (z) a percentage of the aggregate ordinary voting power represented by issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock or other equity securities of the
Company sufficient to allow such Subject Entities to effect a statutory short form merger or other transaction requiring other stockholders of the Company to surrender their
Common Stock without approval of the stockholders of the Company or (C) directly or indirectly, including through subsidiaries, Affiliates or otherwise, in one or more related
transactions, the issuance of or the entering into any other instrument or transaction structured in a manner to circumvent, or that circumvents, the intent of this definition in
which case this definition shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this definition to the extent necessary to correct
this definition or any portion of this definition which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended treatment of such instrument or transaction.

 
(m) “Group” means a “group” as that term is used in Section 13(d) of the 1934 Act and as defined in Rule 13d-5 thereunder.
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(n) “Options” means any rights, warrants or options to subscribe for or purchase shares of Common Stock or Convertible Securities.
 
(o) “Parent Entity” of a Person means an entity that, directly or indirectly, controls the applicable Person, including such entity whose common

stock or equivalent equity security is quoted or listed on an Eligible Market (or, if so elected by the Holder, any other market, exchange or quotation system), or, if there is more
than one such Person or such entity, the Person or such entity designated by the Holder or in the absence of such designation, such Person or entity with the largest public
market capitalization as of the date of consummation of the Fundamental Transaction.

 
(p) “Person” means an individual, a limited liability company, a partnership, a joint venture, a corporation, a trust, an unincorporated organization,

any other entity and a government or any department or agency thereof.
 
(q) “Principal Market” means The Nasdaq Capital Market.
 
(r) “Standard Settlement Period” means the standard settlement period, expressed in a number of Trading Days, for the Company’s primary

trading market or quotation system with respect to the Common Stock that is in effect on the date of delivery of an applicable Exercise Notice.
 
(s) “Subject Entity” means any Person, Persons or Group or any Affiliate or associate of any such Person, Persons or Group.
 
(t) “Successor Entity” means one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the Holder, the Company or Parent Entity) formed by, resulting

from or surviving any Fundamental Transaction or one or more Person or Persons (or, if so elected by the Holder, the Company or the Parent Entity) with which such
Fundamental Transaction shall have been entered into.

 
(u) “Trading Day” means any day on which the Common Stock is traded on the Principal Market, or, if the Principal Market is not the principal

trading market for the Common Stock, then on the principal securities exchange or securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded.
 
(v) “Weighted Average Price ” means, for any security as of any date, the dollar volume-weighted average price for such security on the Principal

Market during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly announces is the official open of trading), and ending
at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such other time as the Principal Market publicly announces is the official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg through its “Volume
at Price” function or, if the foregoing does not apply, the dollar volume-weighted average price of such security in the over-the-counter market on the electronic bulletin board
for such security during the period beginning at 9:30:01 a.m., New York time (or such other time as such market publicly announces is the official open of trading), and ending
at 4:00:00 p.m., New York time (or such other time as such market publicly announces is the official close of trading), as reported by Bloomberg, or, if no dollar volume-
weighted average price is reported for such security by Bloomberg for such hours, the average of the highest Closing Bid Price and the lowest closing ask price of any of the
market makers for such security as reported in the OTC Link or “pink sheets” by OTC Markets Group Inc. (formerly Pink OTC Markets Inc.). If the Weighted Average Price
cannot be calculated for a security on a particular date on any of the foregoing bases, the Weighted Average Price of such security on such date shall be the fair market value as
mutually determined by the Company and the Holder. If the Company and the Holder are unable to agree upon the fair market value of such security, then such dispute shall be
resolved pursuant to Section 11 but with the term “Weighted Average Price” being substituted for the term “Exercise Price.” All such determinations shall be appropriately
adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or other similar transaction during the applicable calculation period.

 
[Signature Page Follows]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant to Purchase Common Stock to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set out above.
 

 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
   
 By:  
 Name: Ronald F. Dutt
 Title: Chief Executive Officer and President

 
[Signature Page to Warrant]

 
   



 
 

EXHIBIT A
 

EXERCISE NOTICE
 

TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER TO EXERCISE THIS
WARRANT TO PURCHASE COMMON STOCK

 
FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.

 
The undersigned holder hereby exercises the right to purchase _________________ shares of Common Stock (“Warrant Shares”) of Flux Power Holdings, Inc., a

Nevada corporation (the “Company”), evidenced by the attached Warrant to Purchase Common Stock (the “Warrant”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise
defined shall have the respective meanings set forth in the Warrant.
 

1. Form of Exercise Price. The Holder intends that payment of the Exercise Price shall be made as:
 

____________ a “Cash Exercise” with respect to _________________ Warrant Shares; and/or
 

____________ a “Cashless Exercise” with respect to _______________ Warrant Shares.
 

2. Payment of Exercise Price. In the event that the holder has elected a Cash Exercise with respect to some or all of the Warrant Shares to be issued pursuant hereto, the
holder shall pay the Aggregate Exercise Price in the sum of $___________________ to the Company in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
 

3. Delivery of Warrant Shares. The Company shall deliver to the holder __________ Warrant Shares in accordance with the terms of the Warrant.
 
Date: _______________ __, ______
  
  

Name of Registered Holder  
 
By:   
Name:  
Title:  
 
   



 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT
 

The Company hereby acknowledges this Exercise Notice and hereby directs Issuer Direct Corporation to issue the above indicated number of shares of Common Stock
on or prior to the applicable Share Delivery Date.
 
 FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
   
 By:          
 Name:  
 Title:  
 
   



 
 

EXHIBIT B
 

ASSIGNMENT FORM
 

FLUX POWER HOLDINGS, INC.
 

(To assign the foregoing Warrant, execute this form and supply required information. Do not use this form to purchase shares.)
 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the foregoing Warrant and all rights evidenced thereby are hereby assigned to
 

Name:   
  (Please Print)
   
Address:   
  (Please Print)
   
Dated: _______________ __, ______  
   
Holder’s Signature:  
   
Holder’s Address:  
 
NOTE: The signature to this Assignment Form must correspond with the name as it appears on the face of the Warrant, without alteration or enlargement or any change
whatever. Officers of corporations and those acting in a fiduciary or other representative capacity should file proper evidence of authority to assign the foregoing Warrant.
 
   



 
Exhibit 31.1

 
CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
 

I, Ronald F. Dutt, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of

the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results

of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:
 

 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

   
 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

   
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

 
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and

the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect

the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: November 12, 2020  
  
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt  
Name: Ronald F. Dutt  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 (Principal Executive Officer)  
 
   

 
 



 
Exhibit 31.2

 
CERTIFICATIONS OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
 

I, Charles A. Scheiwe, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Flux Power Holdings, Inc.
  
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of

the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
  
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results

of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
  
4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-

15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant and have:
 
 a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material

information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared;

   
 b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

   
 c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure

controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
   
 d. Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the

Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

 
5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and

the audit committee of the Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 
 a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect

the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
   
 b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

 
Date: November 12, 2020  
  
By: /s/ Charles A. Scheiwe  
Name: Charles A. Scheiwe  
Title: Chief Financial Officer  
 (Principal Financial Officer)  
 
   

 
 



 
Exhibit 32.1

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2020, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the capacities and on the date indicated below, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge:
 
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
  
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

 
Date: November 12, 2020  
  
By: /s/ Ronald F. Dutt  
Name: Ronald F. Dutt  
Title: Chief Executive Officer  
 (Principal Executive Officer)  
 
   

 
 
 



 
Exhibit 32.2

 
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Flux Power Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2020, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the capacities and on the date indicated below, hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge:
 
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
  
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company.

 
Date: November 12, 2020  
  
By: /s/ Charles A. Scheiwe  
Name: Charles A. Scheiwe  
Title: Chief Financial Officer  
 (Principal Financial Officer)  
 
   

 
 


